11/18/2019 [Amend-1]Information Statement

CR07095-2019

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

1. Check the appropriate box:
Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement
2. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
3. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Manila, Philippines
4. SEC Identification Number
102165
5. BIR Tax Identification Code
000-803-498-000
6. Address of principal office

16th floor, Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
Postal Code
1227

7. Registrant's telephone number, including area code
(+632)8821-2202
8. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

December 10, 2019, Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf Club, Harvard Road,
Forbes Park, Makati City

9. Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders
Nov 19, 2019
10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor

Address and Telephone No.

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding
COMMON 1,528,474,000

13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

https://edge.pse.com.ph/openDiscViewer.do?edge_no=61438343b24e9094efdfc15ec263a54d
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11/18/2019 [Amend-1]Information Statement
If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
Philippine Stock Exchange

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to
the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Bright Kindle Resources
& Investments, Inc.

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc.
BKR

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Dec 10, 2019

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) Annual

Time 2PM

Venue Kamagong Function Room, Manila Golf Club, Harvard Road, Forbes Park, Makati City
Record Date Nov 11, 2019

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books
Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

Amended to add profile of Mr. Felix Cesar Zerrudo and include him in the list of nominees for Independent Director

Filed on behalf by:
Name Raquel Frondoso

Designation Compliance officer
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-15

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

Check the appropriate box: [ ] Preliminary information Statement
IX] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: BRIGHT - KINDLE RESOURCES &
INVESTMENTS INC. (FORMERLY BANKARD INC.}

§ »

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organizatién: /| | | 7010
METRO MANILA, PHILIPPINES .

SEC Identification Number: 102165 QM\?\_& - | A wu.,.u
BIR Tax Identification Code: 000-803-498-000

Address of principal office: 16" Floor Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (632) 8176046

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE - 10 December 2019
TIME - 2pm
PLACE - Kamagong Function Room, Manila Goll & Country

Club, Mckinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to secuority
holders: 19 November 2019

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Section 4 and & of the RSA
{(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Dutstanding or Amount of Debt Outstanding

COMMON SHARES 1,528,474,000 (as of 30 September 2019)

Are any or all registrant’s securities listed on a Stock Exchange? Yes (/) MNa( )
All common shares are listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange

Information Starement
2009 Annual Stockholders” Meeting
SEC Form 20 - I3



NOTICE OF ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

Ta All Stockholders:

Maotice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments Inc. (formerly Bankard Ine.) (the “Company™) will be held on Tuesday,
1) December 2019 at 2:00 pm at the Kamagong Funetion Room, Manila Golf & Country Club,
Mckinley Road, Forbes Park, Makati City, to consider and act on the following:

AGENDA

Call to Order

Certification of Quorum

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of Management’s Acts

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other Matters

. Adjournment

=000 P

An organizational Board of Directors” meeting will follow right after the adjournment of the
Stockholders” meeting.

In case you cannot personally attend the meeting, you may appoint a proxy to represent you by
accomplishing the proxy form. Such proxy form should be submitted to the Office of the Corporate
Secretary not later than 5:00 pm on 29 November 2019 to:

Attention: Maila Lourdes G. De Castro
Bright Kindle Resources & Investment Inc.
¢/o 4" Floor Citibank Center, 8741 Pasco de Roxas, Makati City

No proxy bearing a signature which is not legally acknowledged by the Secretary and verified
by the authorized signatory of the Company’'s Stock Transfer Agent, Stock Transfer Services Inc. shall
be honored at the meeting. Tt the stockholder is a corporation, a Secretary’s Certificate of the board
resclution designating the proxy and the authorized officer to execute the proxy should be submitted
together with the proxy. Validation of proxies will be made on 05 December 2019. Standing proxies
on file with the Company will be recognized unless specifically revoked or a new proxy is received by
the Company.

Only stockholders of record at close of business on 11 November 2019 shall be entitled to
notice of or to vote or be voted at the scheduled meeting,

The Management is not asking you for a proxy nor is it requesting vou to send a proxy in its
favor.

Maila Lourdes G. De Castro
Corporate Secretary

Informeation Statement
2019 Anrreal Siockholders’ Meeting
SEC Form 20 - I8



PART 1
INFORMATION REQUIRED IN INFORMATION STATEMENT

A. GENERAL INFORMATION
Item 1. DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING OF SECURITY HOLDERS

a. Date, time and place of the meeting 10 December 2019
2:(Wpm
Kamagong Funetion Room, Manila Golf
and Country Club, Harvard Road
Forbes Pack. Makati Citv

b. Complete mailing address of
principal offices 16" Floor Citibank Tower, Pasco de Roxas, Makati City

¢. Approximate date on which the Information
Statement is first to be sent or given (o
securily holders: 19 November 2019

WE ARF NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND
YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY

Item 2. DISSENTERS' RIGHT OF APPRAISAL

There are no matters to be taken up during the annual stockholders™ meeting with respect to which the
law allows the exercise of appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder. The Corporation Code limits
the exercise of the appraisal right to the following instances:

a. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting
the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in respect superior to those
of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the term of corporate existence (Section

81k

b. In case of the sale, lease, exchange. transfer. mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

& In case of merger or consolidation (Section §1);
d. [n case of investments in another corporation, business or purpoese (Section 42,

[he appraisal right may be exercised by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty (30)
days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares; provided,
that failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the appraisal right. If
the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the corporation shall pay to such stockholder,
upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair value thereof as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation or depreciation in anticipation
of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons. one of whom shall be

Informarion Starement
2009 Annual Stackholders  Mecting
SEC Form 20 - 13



named by the stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final. and their award shall be paid by the corporation
within thirty (30) days after such award is made: Provided, That no payment shall be made to any
dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained eamings in its books to cover
such payvment; and Provided. further. That upon payment by the corporation of the agreed or awarded
price, the stockholders shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

The appraisal right shall be exercised in accordance with Title X of the Corporation Code.

ltem 3. INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN OR OPPOSITION TO MATTERS TO BE
ACTED UPON

[here is no substantial inlerest, direct or indirect. by security holdings or otherwise, of each of the
following persons in any matter to be acted upon, other than the election to office:

1. Each person who has been a director or officer ot the registrant at any time since the beginning
of the last fiscal year:

2. Each nominee for election as a director of the registrant;

3, FEach associate of any of the foregoing persons.

There is no director of the registrant who has informed the company in writing that he intends to opposc
any action to be taken by the registrant at the meeting and indicated the action which he intends to
oppose.

B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Ttem 4. VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS THEREOF

Voting Securities
As of 30 September 2019, 1,528,474,000 Common shares are outstanding, and are entitled to be
represented and vote at the Annual Stockholders” Meeting, Each share 15 entitled 1o one vote.

Record Date
Oily stockholders of record as of 11 November 2019 shall be entitled to notice and vote at the meeting.

Manner of Yoting

The By-Laws of the Company provides thal every stockholder shall be entitled to vote in person or by
proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the matter in question. The
votes for the election of directors. and. excepl upon demand by any stackholder, the votes upon any
question before the meeting, except with respect to the procedural questions determined by the
chairman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or show of hands,

Article 11 Section 8 of the By-Laws of the Company provides that the Directors shall be elected by
plurality vote at the annual meeting of the stockholders for that year at which a quorum is present. A1
cach election for dircetors every stockholder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the
number of shares owned by him for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or o cumulale
his voles by giving one candidate as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the
number of his share shall equal, or by distributing such votes in the same principle among any number
of candidates.

Dformation Statement
2018 Annual Stockholders” Meeting
SEEC Form 200- (5



As of 30 September 2019

| Title of Class Foreign
7,446,053 shares
Common 0.49% percent of class

1.521.027.947 shares
99 _51% percent of class

) .ﬁs,nm_

Total Outstanding |

1,528,474, 000 shares
100% percent of class

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners and Management

(1} Owners of more than 5% of voting securities as of 30 September 2019

T 1
Name, Address of Name of Beneficial
Title of Record and Owner /Relationship Citian. MNumber of Percent
Class Relationship with with Record Owner iR Shares Held of Class
| ship
Issuer |
Common | -PCD Nominee -BEY¥M Business _
Corporation’ Management Corp./ Filipino 1,170,159,989 T76.50%
~Tower 1 — Avala Client
Triangle
Makati Avenue cor.
Paseo de Roxas Makati
City
-Registered owner in _
the books of stock
transfer agent B
= . Total 1,170,159,939 76.36%

Atty. Remegio Dayandayan Jr. as President of RYM shall represent and vote the shares held by RYM in

the Annual Stockholders” Meeting.

{2) Security Ownership of Management as of 30 September 2019:

Title of | Name Beneficial Owner Amount and Nature | Citizensh | Percent
Class of beneficial ip of Class
ownership
Common | Cesar C. Zalamea 1000, Direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | [sidro.C. Alcantara, Jr. 1000,/ Direct Filipino 2.87%
43,919,000/ Indirect
Common | Macario U. Te 16,001,000/ Direct; Filipino 3.33%
35,000,000/ Indirect
Common | Remegio C. Dayandavan, |r. 1000/ Direct Filiping 0.00%
Common | Augusto C. Serafica, Jr. 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | Hermogene H. Real 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | Rolando S. Santos 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00%

PCD Nominee Corporation, a whollv-owned subsidiary of Philippine Central Depository, Inc

(“PCD") is the registered owner of the shares in the books of the Company’s transfer agents in the
Philippines.  The heneficial owners of such shaves are PCD's participants, who hold the shares on

behalf of their clients.

PCD is a private company organized by the major institutions actively

participating in the Philippine capital markets to implement an automated book-entry system aof

handling securities transactions in the Philippines.

Inferrmetion Stalemend
2018 Anrmal Stockholders ™ Mecting
SEC Form 20- 15
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Common | Minda de Pax 1000/ Direct 0.00%
Common | Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo 1000/ Direct Filipino 0.00%
Common | Leddic D), Gutierrez 0 Filipino 0.00%
Common | Reuben F. Alcantara 0 Filiping 0.00%
Total — Directors as a group 94.928.000 Filipino 6.2%
Total — Officers as a group 0 | Filipino 0%
There is nothing to disclose with respect to voting trust holders of 5% or more.
Item 5. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE/CORPORATE OFFICERS
1. Current Directors and key executive officers of the Corporation:
Cesar C. Zalamea 88 | Chairman of the Board/Director | Filipino
Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. 65 | Prestdent/Director Filiping |
Macario U. Te | 87 | Director Filipino
Auvgusto C. Serafica, Jr. | 57 | Director | Filipino
Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo | 54 | Independent Director ilipi
| *Vicente V. Mendoza Independent Director
Remegio C. Dayandayan Jr. | 38  Director Filipino
| Minda P. de Paz 79 | Director Filipino |
| Rolando S. Santos 69 | Director! Vice President and Treasurer | Filipina
Hermogene H. Real 63 | Director! Assistant Corporate Secretary | Filipino
Maila Lourdes G. De Castro | 44 | Corporate Secretary | Filipino
Kenneth Peter Molave Co-Asst. Corporate Secretary _ Filipino
Reuben F. Alcantara 35 | Vice President for Marketing  Filipino
Leddic D. Gutierrez 56 | Vice President for Internal Audit | Filipino

*Resigned on October _m:.w.: 19

All Directors shall hold office until the new Board of Directors are ¢lected during the

Company’s annual stockholders’ mecting,

Incumbent Directors

Cesar C. Zalamea
Chairman of the Board
January 03, 2014 to present
88 vears oldFilipino

Mr. Cesar C. Zalamea was elected Chairman of Bright Kindle Resources Ine. (formerly
Bankard Inc.) in January 2014, e also serves as Chairman of Mareventures Holdings Inc, and
Chairman of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. Currently, he is an Independent
Director of Araneta Properties Inc., a company he joined as Director in Decemnber 2008, Heis
also a member of the Advisory Board of Campbell Lutyens & Co. Lid.. an investment advisory
company based in the UK. In 1945, Mr. Zalamea joined ALlG where he started as an Investment
Analvst at the Philippine American Life Insurance Company (PHILAMLIFE). He went up the
corporate ladder of Philamlife and he became President of the Company in May 1969. While
at Philamlife. he was loaned to the Program lmplementation Agency (PLA) in 1964 as Deputy
Director General. PIA was an economic group that reported directly to the President of the
Philippines. Te returned to Philamlife in 1965, In 1969, Mr. Zalamea was appointed Member
of the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of the Philippines representing the private sector.
In 1981, he left Philamlife to become Chairman of the Development Bank of the Philippines
(DBP) and had 1o resign from being a member of the Monetary Board in view thersof. In 1986,

Information Starement
200 Anrual Stockholders” Meeting
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he left the DBP to go back to ATG. He was then stationed in Hong Kong to be the first President
of the AIG Investment Corporation (Asia) Ltd . At this time, he was elected to serve as
Director in many AlG affiliated companies in Asia, like the ALA Insurance Co., Nan Shan Life
Insurance Co, and Philamlife. Tn 20035 he left ATG to work directly with Mr. Maurice R.
Cireenberg at the C.V_STARR Companies. He was appointed President and CEQ of the Starr
Investment Co. {Asia} Ltd. In 2008 he became Chairman of this Company until he retired in
2010, He obtained his B.S. in Accounting and Banking from the Colegio de San Juan de Tetran
where he graduated as valedictorian. Mr. Falamea received his MBA from New York
Liniversity.

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
Director and President
January 03, 2014 to present
63 years old/Filipino

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. was elected as President and Director in January 2014, Mr. Alcantara
is the President of Financial Risk Resolution Advisory, Ine. He also serves as Director and
President of Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Vice Chairman and Director of Marcvenlures
Mining and Development Corporation. Tle has been a Director of Benguet Corp. since
Movember 2008. He served as Senior Vice President & Head of Corporate & Institutional
Banking at Hongkong and Shanghai Corporation (HSBC). He was elected President and Chief
Executive Officer of Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCom), Manila. Philippines from
2000 10 2004, In addition, he served as Executive Vice President of Corporate Banking Group
of Eguitable PCl Bank (EPCIB) from 1981 to 2000. He served as Director of Bankers
Association of the Philippines from 2000 10 2003, Mr. Alcantara also served at Baneom Finance
Corporation, PCI Bank & Insular Bank of Asia & America (a Bank of America Affiliate) from
1975 to 1981, He 15 a Certified Public Accountant, He obtained his BSC Accounting and BS
Economics degrees from De la Salle University graduating Magna cum Laude. He also
attended the Special Studics in International Banking at the Wharton School, University of
Pennsylvania.

Macario U. Te

Director

January 03, 2014 (o present
87 vears old/Filipino

Mr. Macario 1. Te was elected Director in January 2014, He s the current director of
Mareventures Holdings Inc. He was the previous President of Macte International Corp. and
Linkwealth Construction Corp, Chairman of Autobus Industries Corporation and CEO of M.T.
Holdings Inc. He previously sat as director in the following companies: Bulawan Mining Corp..
PAL Holdings Inc,, Philippine National Bank. Oriental Petroleum and Minerals Corp., Gotesco
Land Inc., PNB Capital and Investment Corp.. PNB General Insurers Co. Inc., PNB Holdings
Corp., PNB Eemittance Center. PNB Securities Inc.. PNB-IFL, PNB Italy SPA, Balahac
Resources and Holdings, Nissan North EDSA, Beneficial- PNB Life and Ilnsurance Co., Inc.,
Waterlront Phils., Fontana Golf Club, Inc., Baguio Gold Holding Corp., Traders Royal Bank,
Traders Hotel, Pacific Rim Oil Resources Corporation, Link World Construction Development
Corporation, Suricon Resources Corporation. Alcorn Petroleum & Minerals Corp., Associated
Devt. Corp., and Palawan Conscolidated Mining Corporation. Mr. T'e obtained his Bachelor of
Science in Commerce from Far Eastern University.

Informaiion Statement
2078 dmwue! Sroefholders” Meeting
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Augusto C. Serafica, JIr.
Director

January 03, 2014 to present
37 vears old/Filipino

Mr. Augusto C. Serafica, Jr. was elected Independent Director in January 2014. He sits as
Chairman of Board in the following companies: Premiere Hortzom Alliance Corporation,
Digiwave Solutions Inc., AOB Management Corporation, TLC Manna Censulting Inc.. Global
Idealogy Corporation He is also the Managing Director of Asian Alliance Invesiment
Corporation and Asian Alliance Holdings and Development Corp. He is currently the Treasurer
of Sinag Cnergy Philippines Inc.. Ardent Property Development Corporation. He serves as
director of Marcventures Holdings Inc. and Investment House Association of the Philippines.
He is the Chairman of the AIM Alumni Association. Treasurer of the AIM Leadership
Foundation Inc., and Chapter Head of the Brotherhood of Christian Businessmen and
Protessionals- Makati Chapter. He was previously connected with Syeip, Gorres, Velayo & Co.
from 1985-1989, He obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Accountancy [rom San Beda
College and Master in Business Management from Asian Institute of Management. Mr.
Serafica is a Certified Public Accountant.

Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo
Independent Director
January 03, 2014 to present
Sdyears old/Filipino

Atty. Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo was elecled as Independent Director in January 2014, He is
also an independent director of Marcventures loldings. Inc. He is the founder of Ocampo &
Mhanalo Law Firm. Ile is a member of the Board in various corporalions, including MAA
General Assurance Phils. Inc., Columbian Autocar Corporation, Asian Carmakers Corp.. Jam
Transit Inc.. Prestige Cars Inc., Autohaus Quezon City Inc., Timebound Trading Corp.. and
Subic Air, In¢. He is the Corporate Secretary of PSI Healtheare Development Services Corp..
PSI Prescription Solutions Corp., Adrianse Phils. Inc., Bluelion Motors Corp., First Charlers
and Tours Transport Corp., Brycl Resorts and International Inc,, AVK Philippines Inc., Jam
Liner Inc., and Manila Golf and Country Club. He previously served as Vice President and
General Counsel of Air Philippines Corporation, Atty. Ocampo obtained his Bachelor of Laws
from the University of the Philippines. Upon graduation from college. he was admitted into the
honor societies of Phi Kappa Phi and Pi Gamma Mu. e completed an Executive Management
Program at the Asian Institute of Management in 1997 and previously taught business law at
the College of St. Benilde at De La Salle Uiniversity. In 2013, he was named as a leading adviser
as well as a commercial law expert by Acquisition International and Global Law Experts,
respectively, In 2014, Asial.aw named him as one of the leading lawvers in the Philippines
primarily tor his contributions in commercial law. He was awarded a certificate of completion
for the Mastering Negotiation: Building Agreements Across Boundaries Program, April 2016,
from the John F. Kennedy School of Government at | larvard University, Executive Education.

Vicente V. Mendoza
Independent Director
{Resigned on October 16, 2019)
86 years old/Filipino

Tustice Vicente V. Mendoza was elected Independent Director in April 2018 He was as an
Associate Justice of the Supreme Court from 1994 to 2003, In 1980, he served as an Associate
Justice of the Court of Appeals until his appointment as its Presiding Justice in 1994, He was
a member of the Presidential Electoral Tribunal from 1994-2003 and of the Howse of
Representatives Electoral Tribunal from 1999.2003. He served in the office of the Solicitor
Cieneral, Department of Justice, first as a Solicitor from 1971-1973 and later as Assistant
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Solicitor General from 1973 to 1980, successfully handling constitutional litigation for the
CGovernment. le has been a Faculty member at the University of the Philippines College of
Law since 1967 1o the present and gave bar review classes from 1978 1o 1994,

Justice Mendoza was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1958 and was a visiting scholar at the
Harvard Law School in the Tall term in 1976, He has authored several law books and has written
several articles published in law journals. He was conferred an LLM degree by Yale Law
School in 1971 and graduated from the UP College of Law in 1957,

He resigned as the Company’s Independent Director on October 16, 2019 due to personal
reasons.

Felix Cesar Zerrudo
Independent Director
59 vears old! Filipino

Mr. Felix Cesar Zerrudo was nominated Independent Director for BRR Annual Stockholders’
Meeting to be held on [0 December 2019. He currently serves as President and Chiet' Operating
Officer of Asian Appraisal Company Inc. He is also the President of Asian Asset Insurance
Brokerage Corporation, Amalgamated Project Management Services Inc. and the Professional
Funding Services Inc. He is a General Manager and Treasurer of AE Proteina Industries Inc.
He is a Director of Top Team Dynamics Incorporated. He previously served as Vice President
of Phoenix Petroleum Philippines, Inc. —Treasury Group from Jan 2009 to June 2009 and the
Philippine National Bank from November 2002 1o December 2008, He obtained his Bachelor
of Arls, Major in beonomics from Ateneo De Manila University in April 1980, He passed the
Real Estate Appraisers’ Licensure Examination last 2015.

Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr,
Dircctor

March 26, 2014 to present

38 years old/Filipino

Atty. Remegio C. Dayandavan. Jr. was elected Director in March 2014, He currently sits as
Director and President of RYM Busingss Management Corporation and the Philippine Manila
Standard Publishing Inc. He was previously an associate of Dum lao Moraleda Antonano and
Tuvera Law Offices from February 2008 to March 2009. He was also a Subjective Discovery
Reviewer of Escaler and Company Ine -LIPO from May 2008 to March 2009 Atty. Dayandayan
obtained his degrees in Bachelor of Arts major in Political Science from the University of San
Carlos in 2001 and Bachelor of Laws ffom San Beda College-Mendiola in 2007. He was
admitted to the Philippine Bar in 2008.

Minda P. de Pax
Director

March 26. 2014 to present
T4 vears old/Filipino

Ms. Minda P. De PPaz was elected Director in March 201 4. She serves as Director and President
of Philippine Collective Media Corporation and Universal Re Condominium Corporation as
well as Director and Treasurer of RYM Business Management Corporation and Lubenico Inc.
she is also a Director of Sequioa Business Management Corp. and a project coordinator of
CPG Joint Venture. Ms. De Paz previously worked at the Philippine National Bank (PNB)-
Ormoe City [rom 1963 to 1977, She then became a Supervising Commission on Audit (COA)
Auditor of PNB-Escolta from 1977 to 1979. She served as COA Corporate Auditor of the
National Home Mortgage Finance Corporation from 1979 to 1984 and Ilome Mutual
Development Fund from 1981 to 1982, She also became an accountan! of Nieva Realty and
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Development Corporation, D.S. Tantuico and Associates Law Office, Almega Managment and
Investments Tne, from 1984 to 2005, Ms. de Paz obtained her Bachelor of Commerce in
Accountancy from 5t. Paul’s College. Tacloban City. She is a Centified Public Accountant

Rolando 5. Santos

Director and Vice President and ‘| reasurer
January 03, 2014 1o present

69 years old/Filipine

Mr. Rolando . Santos was elected Director in May 2014 and Vice President and Treasurer in
January 2014, He serves as Treasurer of Mareventures Holdings Ine., Marcventures Mining
and Development Corp. and Prime Media Holdings Inc. He was previously the Branch Head/
Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Equitable PCL Bank which was eventually acquired by
BDO from 2001 to 2013, He served as Branch Head in Diliman. Quezon City to Area Head for
Metrn and Provincial branches of the Bank of Commerce from 1984 to 2001. He also served
as Branch head in West Avenue, Quezon City and Marikina branches of the Producers Bank of
the Philippines from 1981 to 1984. He worked at the Far East Bank and Trust Co. from 1972
to 1981. He was also employed as a ligison officer of the Malacanang Information and
Assistance Unit from 1970 to 1972, He obtained his degree in Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration from the University of the East,

Hermogene H. Real
Direetor and Assistant Corporate Secretary
January 03, 2014 to present

3 years old/Filipino

Atty. Hermpgene H. Real was elected Director in May 2014 and Assistant Corporate Secretary
in January 2014, She serves as Director of Philippine Collectivemedia Corporation (2008 (o
present). as Corporate Secretary of Benguet Corporation (2000 to present) and Universal Re
Condominium Corporation (1997 to 2009, 2010 to present), as Assistant Corporale Secretary
of Dona Remedios Trinidad Romualdez Medical Foundation, Inc. (1996 to present),
Benguetcorp Nickel Mines, [ne. (2009 to present). She is a lawyer in D.S. Tantuico and
Associates (1998 to present). She previously held the following positions: Chairman of the
Buoard and President of Philippine Collectivemedia Corporation (2008 to 2010); Corporate
Secretary of Trans Middle East Phils. Equities, Inc. (1996 to 2006); and Assistant Corporate
Sceretary of Equitable PCI Bank, Inc. (2005-2006).

Key Officers:

Maila Lourdes G. De Castro
Corporate Secretary
Seplember 03, 20192 to present
44 years old/Filipino

Atty. Maila Lourdes G. De Castro elected as Corporate Secretary in September 2019. She also
serves as the Asst. Corporate Secretary for Marcventures Holdings Inc and subsidiaries. She
earmed her master’s degree in Business Administration from the Asian Institute of Management
{AIM) in 2006 and her juris Doctor from the Ateneo de Manila School of Law in 2000 and was
admitted 1o the Integrated Bar of the Philippine in year 2001. She completed her Bachelor of
Arts in Mass Communications from the University of the Philippines in 1996, She worked
with the Belo Gozon Elma Parel Law as Legal Associate and Special Projects Counsel from
2000-2006. She was also the Corporate Counsel and Vice President/Ilead of Legal and
Corporate Planning of UNITEL from 2006 - 2013, subsequently went in to private practice [or
the past six (6) years and concurrently the Chairperson of the Rules Charge Committee of the
Philippine Electricity Market Corporation. During her stint on the above-mentioned positions
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and fimctions, she worked in the areas of Contract Management, Representation in
Administrative and Regulatory Agencies, Labor,Intellectual Property, Tax, Contract Review,
Management and Negotiations, Legal Advisory and Good Governance-Compliance.

Kenneth Peter Molave
Co-Asst. Corporate Secretary
October 16, 2019 to present
30 vears old/ Filipino

Atty. Kenneth Peter Molave is a practicing lawyer with experience in civil and ctiminal
litigation, corporate secretarial services and business taxation. In January of 2017, he worked
as an underbar associate assigned to the Business Tax Services division at the accounting firm,
Sveip Gorres Velayo & Co. Upon obtaining his license to practice law, he worked as pant of
the Legal Services Group of the Departiment of Finance. In 2018, he transferred to Libra Law
Firm as a Junior Associate assigned to the litigation department. After almost two years, or in
Aungust of 2019, he joined at Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation (MMIDC) as
in-house legal associate. He has a Legal Management degree from the Ateneo de Naga
University and obtained his Juris Doctor from the University of the Philippines.

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara
Vice President for Marketing
May 26, 2016 to present

36 years old/Filipino

Mr. Reuben F. Alcantara was appointed Vice President for Marketing in May 2016. He
currently serves as Vice President for Marketing, Business Development, and Strategic
Planning of Marcventures Holdings, Inc. He is also the Company’s Investor Relations Officer.
He previously served as the Vice President for Marketing of AG Finance, Inc., as Relationship
and Credit Officer for Security Bank and has had stints in Corporate Banking in Bank of
Commerce and Maybank Philippines. Mr. Alcantara obtained his Executive Masters in
Business Administration Degree from the Asian Institute of Management in the year 2016.

Mr. Leddie D. Gutierrez

Wice President for Internal Audit
May 26, 2016 to present

56 vears old/Filipino

Mr. Leddie Gutierrez was appointed as Vice President for Internal Audit in May 2016. He is
a Certificd Public Accountant and has held key positions in internal audit, corporate services
and compliance and control since 1995, Mr, Gutierrez is currently the Vice President for Audit
and Risk Management of Marcventures Mining and Development Corp. (MMDC). He
previously served as Vice President for Internal Audit of AG Finance, Inc.. as Division Head
{Assistant Vice President) of Strategic Support Division under Institutional Banking Sector of
Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company, where, since joining in November 201 | as Compliance
and Control Officer (Senior Manager), he oversaw [BS's compliance (o policies, procedures
and regulations set by the Bank, BSP and regulatory agencics and led in systems and process
improvements for the Group. From April 2005 to October 201 1, Mr. Gutierrez served as Head
of Internal Audit of PLDT Global Corporation (PGC), a subsidiary and international marketing
firm of PLDT Co. In this role, he carried out operational. information technology, financial,
network and compliance audits of PGC. Mr, Gutierrez is a graduate of the University of the
[ast.
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Nomination Committee and Nominees for Election us Members of the Board of Directors

The Momination Committee i3 composed of three (3) members with one (1) independent
dircetor. This committee is responsible for assisting the Board of Dircelors in evaluating qualifications
of all persons nominated to the Board or to other positions requiring Board appointment; evaluating
whether individual directors are able to carry out his'her duties; making recommendations to the Board
on continuing education of dircctors, and assignment 10 board committees; and delermining
compensation of officers and directors of the Company base on their qualifications and duties.

Nomination Committes

Cesar C, Zalamea Chairman
[sidro C. Alcantara, Jr. Member
Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo Member

The Nomination Commiltee has come up with the [inal list of nominees in the coming Election of
Directors during the Annual Stockholders™ Meeting on 10 December 2019 as follows:

Regular Directors:

Cesar C. Falamea

Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
Macario U, Te

Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr.
Augusto C. Serafica, Jr.
Hermogene H. Real
Rolando 5. Santos

Minda P. De Paz

Independent Directors:

Carlos Alfonso T, Ocampo
Felix Cesar Zerrudo

The Nomination and Compensation Committee determined that the candidates possess all the
qualifications and none of the disqualitications as director or independent director.

None of the directors and executive ollicers named above 1s related.

The Independent Directors, Atty. Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo and Mr. Felix Cesar Zerrudo, were
nominated by Mr. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. Both nominees are not related to Mr, Alcantara. They possess
the gualifications and none of the disqualifications of an independent director pursuant to the
nomination and election of independent directors in SRC Rule 38. The Company will submit updated
Certifications within thirty (30) days after their election.

Al each election for directors, every stockholder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy, the
number of shares owned by him for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or to cumulate
his votes by giving one candidate as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the
number of his shares shall equal, or by distributing such votes in the same principle among any numbers
of candidates.

The additional nominees for regular directors to the Board may be submitted on the floor for the election
of directors during the meeting. However, only nominces whose names appear on the Final List of
Candidates shall be eligible for election as Independent Diirector/s, No other nominations for
Independent Directors shall be entertained after the Final List of Candidates shall have been prepared,
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No further nominations shall be entertained or allowed on the floor during the actual stockholders”
meeting.

Period in Which Directors and Executive Officers Should Serve

The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of one (1) yvear.

Term of Office of u Director

The directors shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stockholders owning
majority of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one (1) year and shall serve until the election and
gualification of their successors.

Any vacancy in the board of dircetors other than removal or expiration of term may be filled
by a majority vote of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for that purpose il they still
constitute a quorum, and the director or directors so chosen shall serve for the unexpired term.

Significant Employee

The company is not highly dependent on any individual who is not an executive officer.
Family Relationships

There are no family relationships among the officers listed.
Interest on Certain Matters to be Acted Lpon

No director or officer of the Corporation has substantial interest, direct or indirect, in any
matter to be acted upon in the meeting.

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As far as the Corporation is aware, none of the directors, officers or members of the Company™s
senior management have, during the last five years and to date, been subject to any of the
following:

a) any bankruptcy, petition filed by or against any husiness of which such person was a
general partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two (2)
years prior to the time;

b} any conviction by final judgment of any offense in any pending criminal proceeding.
domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offenses;

c) any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any
court of competent jurisdiction. domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining,
barring. suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any tvpe of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

d) found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the
Commission or comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or electronic
marketplace or sell-regulatory organization, W have viclated a securities or commodilies
law, and the judgment has not been reversed. suspended or vacated.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
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Item 6.

There are no significant transactions entered into by the Company in the normal course of
business with related parties except as discussed in note 13 to the audited Financial Statements.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Summary of Compensation Table

Information as (o aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two fiscal vears and
to be paid in the ensuing fiscal yvear to Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.”s Chief

Executive Officer and four other most highly compensated executive officers follows:

Summary of Compensation Table

Information as to aggregate compensation paid or accrued during the last two fiscal vears and
lo be paid in the ensuing tiscal year to Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.”s Chief Executive
Officer and four other most highly compensated executive officers follows:

SUMMARY OF COMPENSATION TABLE

| NAMES POSITION SALARY BONUS PER DIEM
Cesar (. Zalamea Chairman
Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. President |
Rolando 8. Santos Treasurer
Diane Madelyn Ching Corporate Secretary
llermagene H. Real Assl. Corporate
Secretary
Reuben F. Alcantara VP Marketing
Leddie D, Gutierrez VP Internal Audit
All above named 2007 15?9%.9@.-
officers as a group 2018 B £50,000,00
2019 Cstimated m B P100,000.00
NAMES POSITION | SALARY BONUS PER DIEM
All other officers and 2007 PRO,000.00
| directors as group 2018 . #60.000.00
:::m_smﬁ | 2019 Estimated _ ) P140.000.00

The 2019 estimated compensation for directors and cxecutive officers is subject to changes as the
BOD through the Compensation Committee is continuously reviewing the directors’ and executive
officers’ compensation which shall be in accordance with the parameters set by the Company’s by-
laws and other industry standards.

Compensation of Directors

(a) Standard Arrangements

Except for nominal per diem for attending board & committee meetings, there are no standard
arrangements by which Directors are compensated directly or indirectly.

fh} Other Arrangements

None.
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Employment Contract and Termination of Employment and Change-in-Control Arrangements

For the yvear ended December 31, 2018, the Company engaged consultants and emplovees from
outsourcing agencies to perform its dav to dav transactions.

Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

The above-named executive officers and directors, and all officers and directors as a group. do
not hold equity warrants or options as the company does not have any outstanding equity
warrants or options.

Item 7. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

a) Independent Public Accountants. Reyes Tacandong & Co, (RTC) will stand [or re-election
as the Corporation’s external auditors for the vear 2019 which shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval during the Annual Meeting in compliance with SRC Rule 68,
Paragraph 3(b)(iv) which provides that the external auditor should be rotated every five (3)
years or earlier or the handling partner shall be changed.

b) RTC was first elected as the Company’s Independent Public Accountant in May 2015,
Representatives of RTC will be present during the annual meeting and will be given the
opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected 1o respond
to appropriate questions if needed. There was no event where RTC and the Company had
any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure. Except as stated in the report
of independent auditors, the Corporation has no disagreements with its auditors,

¢) Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. re-appointed Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC)
as its independent external auditor for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018. RTC is
a leading professional services finn with a proven track record of high quality work. They
provide value-added services to clients through their client caring team of outstanding
audit, tax and business professionals who utilize leading-edge systems and technology and
are guided by the highest standards of quality, integrity and competence.

d) For the audit of the Company’s Annual financial statemcnts and services provided in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounts to
be billed or already billed excluding VAT and out of pocketl expenses (OPE) by RTC
amounts/amounted to P0.30 million and P0.25 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively,

The Audit Commitiee recommends to the Board the selection of external auditors considering
independence and effectivencss,

Audit Committee

Carlos Alfonso T. Ocampo -Chairman
Augusto C. Serafica, Jr. =hMember
WVicente V. Mendoza -Member

The Audit Committee is composed of three members with two independent directors. As
provided for in its charter, the objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the board of
directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities by reviewing the financial reporting process,
the system of internal control. risk management. governance processes, the audit process and
the company’s process for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and its own code
of business conduct,
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Item 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

No action is proposed 1o be taken during the stockholders’ meeting with regard to any bonus. profit
sharing, pension‘retirement plan. granting of any extension of options. warrants or rights to purchase
any securitics.

C, TSSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Mo matter will be taken up invelving any issuance or exchange of securities.

Item 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR
EXCHANGE

There is nothing to disclose with respect 1o authorization or issuance of securities.
Ttem 10, MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

None
D. OTHER MATTERS
Item 11. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS & OTHER PROPOSED ACTION/S

The following matters shall be submitted to the vote of stockholders of the Company during the
stockholders™ meeting.

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements ending December 31,
2018

Ratification of Management’s Acts

Election of Dircctors

Appointment of External Auditor

[

L de L

Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Natice and Quorum.

Action i3 10 be taken on the approval of the Minutes of the previous stockholders’ meeting. The
Summary of the minutes therefor is provided below:

1. The stockholders approved the minutes of the meeting of the last Annual General Meeting of
the stockhelders held last 04 December 2018,

2. 'The stockholders approved the Management/President’s Report and the Annual Report for the
year 2018 including the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31
December 2018,

3. The stockholders ratified all acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the previous
yedr up to even date.

4. The stockholders elected the following as direclors of the Corporation to serve for the period
2018-2019 and until their successors shall have been duly elected as qualified. to wit:

4. Cesar C. Zalamea
b. Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr.
¢, Macario U Te
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d. Remegio C. Dayandayan, Jr.
Augusto C. Serafica, Ir.
Hermogene H. Beal
Rolando 8, Santos

Minda P. De Paz

Carlos Allonso T, Ocampo
Diane Madelyn C. Ching
Vicente V. Mendoza

ool w1 B e

3. The stockholders approved the appointment of Reves Tacandong & Co. as the Lxternal
Auditor of the Corporation for the ensuing vear.

Summary of the Minutes of the Board Meetings for the vear 2019 for ratification of management’s
actions,

Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates:

a. 12 April 2019
b. 3 Sepltember 2019
. 16 October 2019

At these meetings, operational and [inancial reports were discussed. In addition. the following matters
were laken up:

1. 12 April 2019
- Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the vear 2018

2. 3 September 2019
- Postponement of Annual Stockholders” Meeting
- Acceptance of the resignation of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching as Director. Corporate
Secretary, Compliance Officer and Data Privacy Officer
- Appointment of Atty. Maila Lourdes G. De Castro as Corporate Secretary, Compliance
OMfcer and Data Privacy Officer

3, 16 October 2019
- Setting the schedule of the Annual Stockholder’s Meeting for the year 2019
- Appointment of Atty. Kenneth Peter Molave as Co-Assistant Corporate Secretary
- Resignation of Justice Vicente V., Mendoza as Independent Director

Item 12. AMENDMENTS OF CHARTER, BY-LAWS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

There are no matters to be taken up in relation to the Amendment of the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation or By-laws.

Itemn 13, VOTING PROCEDURES
(a) The vote required for approval or election

A majority of the subscribed capital present in person or represented by proxy, shall be
sufficient at a stockholders meeting to constitute a quoram for the transaction of any business
whatsoever, except in those cases in which the Corporation Code requires the affirmative vote
ol a greater portion.
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(b The method by which the votes will be counted

At cach meeting of the stockholders. every stockholder shall be entitled to vote in person or by
proxy, for each share of stock held by him which has voting power upon the matter in question.

The votes for the election of dircciors, and, excepl upon demand by any stockholder, the votes
upon any question before the meeling excepl to the procedural questions determined by the
chairman of the meeting, shall be by viva voce or show of hands. Representatives of Stock
Transfer Services Ine, are authorized to count the votes to be cast during the meeting.

The directors of the Corporation shall be elected by plurality vote at the annual meeting of the
stockholders for that vear at which a quorum is present. At each elegtion for directors. every
stockholder shall have the right to vote, in person or by proxy. the number of shares owned by
him for as many persons as there are directors to be elected, or to cumulate his votes by giving
ome candidate as many votes as the number of such directors multiplied by the number of his
share shall equal, or by distributing such votes at the same principle among any number of
candidates.

MANAGEMENT REFORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

1. Business Development
(a} Form and year of organization

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. (the Company), formerly Bankard, Inc. was
incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
December 4, 1981 as a credit card corporation. On March 21, 1995, the Company listed its shares
with the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE). Prior to December 27, 2013, the Company is a
subsidiary of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC),

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) of RCBC approved the sale of its 89.98%

collective stake in the Company to RYM Business Management Corp. (the Parent Company) and
other investors. The Parent Company acquired 76.56% interest in the Company.

In November 2013, the BOD approved the amendment to change the corporate name to Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to a holding Company.

The Company’s principal office address is at 16" Floor, Citibank Tower 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati
City.

(b) Any bankrupicy, receivership or similar proceeding?
There were no bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings for the Corporation.

(¢)  Any material reclassification, merger, consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant
amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business?

RCBC sold its collective stake of 89.98% in the Corporation in favor of RYM Business Management
Corp. and other investors. As a result, it transferred all or substantially all of its assets and certain
liabilities to RCBC and RBSC (refer to Note 1 of the 2015 Audited Financial Statements).

2. Business of Issuer
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(a) Description of Registrant
i) Principal Products or Services

From 2007 to December 2013, the Corporation was a credit card servicing company whose primary
customer was Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC) and indirectly the RCBC Bankard
cardholders, to whom the cards are issued, and its aceredited merchants, As a servicing entity, the
Corporation provided RCBC marketing, selling and distribution assistance, technical, collection
services and all transaction processing requirements arising from its credit cardholder and merchant
transactions.

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors of RCBC approved the sale ol its 89.98% collective
ownership in Bankard, Inc. 1o RYM Business Management Corporation and other investors through
P’hilippine Business Bank, Inc. — Trust and Investment Center. The sale of shares was consummated
on December 27, 2013, In view ol the foregoing, RCBC s credit card operations were transferred to
a related party, RBSC, and the Corporation ceased to operate any credil card related business as of
December |6, 2013,

Considering the sale, the Company changed its primary purpose and now engages in the purchase,
exchange, assignment, gift or otherwise, and hold, own and use for Investment or otherwise, and sell,
assign, transfer, exchange, lease, let, develop. mortgage, pledge, deal in and with and otherwise
operate, use and dispose of, any and all propertics of every kind and description and wherever
situated. as and fo the extent permilted by law, mcluding, but net limited to, bonds, debentures,
promissory notes, shares of capital stock, or other securities and obligations, created, negotiated or
issued by any corporation, association. or other entity. foreign or domestic and while the owner,
holder. or possessor thereot. to exercise all the rights and powers, and privileges of ownership or any
other interest therein, mmcluding the right to receive. collect and dispose of, any and all dividends,
interests and income, derived therefrom, and the right to vole on any proprietary or other interest. on
any shares of capital stock, and upon any bonds, debentures. or other securitics, having voting power,
50 owned or held, without however engaging in the business of an investment company under the
Investment Company Act or a finance company or a broker or dealer in securities of stocks.

Target Market/Segments of Business

The Corporation was previously engaged in providing services to credit cardholders of RCBC and
targeted cardable customers across all segments. The company lapped merchants in different
geographical locations in the country in order Lo acquire transactions of both credit and debit card
transactions. As a service entity, Bankard provides business process oulsourcing to interested clients

given its expertise in credit card payment processing.

At present, the Corporation is looking [or viable investments which will provide attractive retumns to
its shareholders.

Accredited Esrablishments
MNone.
fii} Foreign Sales

None.

(iii) Distribution methods of the products or services
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None.

fiv) Status of any publich-announced new product or service
None.

(v) Competition

None.

fvil  Disclose dependerncies on single or limited number of suppliers for essential raw materials,
energy or other items

Inasmuch as the Corporation ceased to provide credit card services and considering the current
business of the Corporation as a holding company, it will have very limited need for raw materials.
The Company is not dependent on single or limited number of suppliers and it sources materials rom
various suppliers as necessary,

(vii) Disclose dependencies on single customer

Prior to the block sale last 27 December 2013, the Corporation only provided services to RCBC. The
service fee derived from servicing the principal client, RCBC, was the main revenue source of the
Corporation.

MNow, as a holding company, the Corporation is no longer dependent on a single customer/client.
(viii) Transactions with and'or dependence on refluted parties

Refer to note 13 of the Audited Financial Statements,

{ix) Summarize principal terms & expiration dates of all patents, trademarks, copyrights, licenses,
Sfranchises, concessiony & royalty agrecments

Prior to sale last 27 December 2013, the Corporation has licenses from MasterCard International, Visa
International, JCB International Co. and UnionPay International which allows the company to issue

credit cards and acquire transactions of merchants carrving said brands.

In view of the block sale and change in ownership and management, the Corporation has terminated
its licenses from MasterCard. Visa. JCB and UPL

(x) Need for any government approval of principal products or services

The Corporation has no principal products or services that need government approval.

{xi} Effect of existing vr probable government regulations on the business

The Corporation’s business is not alfected by existing or probable government regulations,
(xif) Indicate amount spent on research & development

The Corporation did not incur any research and development costs from 2012 to 2019.

fxiii} Cost & effects of compliance with environmental laws

22
Injormation Statement
20408 Anrual Stockhiolders ™ Meeting
SEC Form 20 - 5



The Corporation intends to continue the implementation of cost-efficient methods to save paper and
encourage recycling within the organization.

fxiv) State the namber of the registrant’s present employees
Emplovees

Starting 2014, aside trom the key management officers, all of the Corporation’s personnel performing
the Company’s daily operations are being outsourced

fxv) Discuss the mafjor risk/s involved in each of the businesses of the company. Include a
disclosure of the procedures being undertaken to identify, ussess & manage such risks

Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as a result of changes in the levels
of the cquity indices and the values of individual stocks. The Company’s exposure to equity price risk
relates primarily to its AFS investments listed in the PSE classified under financial assels at OCL

The Company’s policy is to maintain the risk to an acceplable level. Movement of share price is
monitored regularly to determine impact on the Company’s financial position.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of 1oss that may arise on owtstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
default on its obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from cash (excluding
¢ash om hand), loans and receivables, and ATS financial assets.

Exposure to Credit Risk. The carrying amount of cash, receivables, and AFS financial assets represent
the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Credit Quality. The credit quality of the Company’s financial asscts that are neither past due nor
impaired are considered to be of high grade and expected to be collectible without incurring any credit
losses.

High grade financial assets are those financial assets from counterparties with good financial condition
and with relatively low detaults.

{b) Additional Requirements as to Certain Issues or Issucrs

MNone.

Item 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

The Company acquired a Condominium Unit at Unit 16 B Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City last August 2014 which is being used as office.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal proceedings involving the Corporation were transferred to RBSC.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

I~
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There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter covered
by this report.

PART I -OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 5. MARKET PRICE FOR ISSUER’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS' MATTERS

1. Market Information

The Corporation’s shares of stock are heing traded at the Philippine Stock Exchange under
Banks and Financial Institutions and classified as Financials.

Q1 (2017) 1.15 1.55
Q2 (2017) .05 .61
Q3 (2017) .24 3.24
Q4 (2017) 1.90 3.03
Q1 (2018) 155 2 08
Q2 (2018) 127 1.83
03 (2018) 1.46 222
| Q4 (2018) R | .86
Q1 (2019) 1.31 1.68
Q2 (2019) 1.14 1.38
03 (2019) L | s

The high and low prices of the Company’s share as of the latest practicable trading date of
05 November 2019 are PhP 1.33 and PhP 1.14, respectively.

2. Holders
The number of stockholders of record as of September 30. 2019 is 630, Common shares
outstanding as of this date is 1.528.474.000. The percentage of shares of stocks owned by the

public is 17.2% of the total outstanding shares

Top twenty (20) stockholders as of September 30, 2019:

l PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION(FILIPING 1317226785 99.26%
2 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (NON-FILIPING) 7.336.803  00.48%
24
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.l

WILLTAM R. CU-UNITENG OR CYNTHIA C.U. BUNAG 200000  00.01%

d JARDINE CMG LIFE 146,000 00.01%
5 AMA RURAL BANK OF MANDALUYONG, [NC. 100,000 00.01%
6 RIC CASTANEDA &/0OR HECTOR 1IY 100,000 00.01%
T SALAZAR, ERNESTO B, LO0,000  00.01%
8 WILLIAM R, CU UNIENG 1000 00.01%
4 BORRES, JUN M. 90,000  00.01%
[ ROLDAN, MARIAN D. 83,000 00.01%
11 JARDINE CMG VALUE 80,000 DO.01%
2 CHUA, CATHERINE ANGSIONGA 5, 75,000 00.00%,
L3 JUN M. BORRES &/OR BUENAVENTURA CASENAS HUO000  00.00%
14 GILLJR., GUILLERMO I, 50,000 00.00%
15 TORRES, ROBERTO BELARMING 5. 500000 00.00%
16 WILAR. ANTONIO L. S0,000 0 00.00%
17 LOPEZ, OOSCAR M. 30,000 00.00%
18 PUNZALAN, LARRY A, 43,500 00.00%
19 SY., VICTOR GAN 40,000 00.00%
20 KAIRUZ, PETER M. 40,000 00.00%

3. Dividends

Mo dividends has been declared and paid for the year ended December 31, 2018, Subject to
the availability of unrestricted retained earnings and funding requirements of the Company, the
Board may declare cash dividends. Notably, the declaration of stock dividends is subject to the
approval of the stockholders,

4. Recent Sales of Unregistered or xempt Securities, Tncluding Recent Issuance of
Securities Constituting an Exempt Transaction

MNone.

Item 6. COMPLIANCE WITH LEADING PRACTICE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Governance Statement

As a publicly-listed Philippine corporation, Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc. (formerly
Bankard Inc.) (“BER™) conforms 1o the corporate governance rules, requirements, and regulations of
the Philippine (SEC) and the Philippine Stock Fxchange (PSE). BKR submitted its I-ACGR in 2018
which is used as a ool w disclose Publiclv-Listed Companies” compliance/non-compliance with the
recommendations provided under the Code of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies,
which follows the “comply or explain™ approach, which is used in harmonizing the corporate
governance reportorial requirements of the SEC and the PSE.

BER is committed to the highest standards of corporate govemance and continues to benchmark its
procedures with recognized local and international best practices. The Board of Directors (BOD) and
Management commil themselves to the principles and best practices of good governance based on its
Revised Manual on Corporate Governance. The BOD and Management believe that good governance
is a necessary component of what constitutes sound strategic business management. and therefore, take
cvery efforl necessary o create awareness thereof within the organization. To ensure constant
improvement, BKR checks recent developments in corporate govemnance to elevate the Company's
coTporate governance structures, processes, and practices.
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BKR complies with the Code of Corporate Governance of the SEC and Corporate Governance
Guidelines and listing rules of the PSE. and endeavours to raise its corporate governance practices in
line with local and international best practices,

Ttem 6. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial

statements and related notes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 prepared in conformity with PFRS
hereto attached in the Exhibits.

The financial information for the three vears ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:
2018 vs. 2017

Results of operations

Audited Increase( Decrease)

2018 2017 Amount Yo

(i millions)
Revenues P0.00 P0.15 (P0.15) {99.26)
Clperating expenses 7.27 6,88 0.39 5.60
Share in net income (loss) of an
associate (7737 1557 (92.95) (596.79)
Net income (loss) (PR4.64) PB.84 (PO3.48) (1L037.18%)

The Company incurred a net loss of P84.64 million during the year, a decrease of

P93.48 million compared with last year's net income of P8.84 million. Significant changes in the

income statement accounts for the year ended December 31, 2018 versus the same period last year are

as follows:

s Revenues are derived mainly from interest on bank deposits. Revenues declined by P0.13
million compared with same period last vear, due to lower level of cash this vear than that of
prior year.

e General and administrative expenses increased by P0.39 million or 5.60% compared with
same period last year. The increase is attributable (o movements of the following accounts:

»  More outsourced services were incurred this year than last vear, resulting to increase in
Otside services account by PO.87 million or 75,72%,

o The Company’s service vehicle has been fully depreciated last February 2018 (the same
vehicle has been disposed in April 2018). Consequently, depreciation expenses dropped
by $0.28 million or 12.03% compared with same period last year,

= Professional fees increased by $0.07 million or 11.14% compared with same period last
vear, mainly due to increase in annual listing fee and RSA token fee paid to PSE from
P0.26 million last vear to P0.31 million this vear.

¢ Communication. light and water of 0.29 million, increased by P0.08 million as compared
with last year of same period.

Infurmation Srarement
2019 Annwal Stovkholders” Meeiing
SEC Form 20- 15



v

+  Other expenses this vear is lower by P0.25 million or 29.50%, mainly due 1o pavment for
PCD maintenance fee made last year.

Share in net income (Joss) of an associate — The Company’s share in net loss of an associate
this year amounted to 77.37 million — a decline of P92.95 million from last vear’s share in net
income amounting to 1557 million.

Financial Position

5

Audited Increase( Decrease)
2018 2017 Amount %%
{in millions)

Assets P2.032.01 PL753.94  (121.34)  (4.41%)
Liabilities 1,672.96 1,710.23 (37.27)  (2.18%)
stockholders” Tquity 959.65 1.043.71 (84.06) (8.05%)

Assets during the vear of P2.632.6] million is lower by P121.34 million or 4.41% compared
with same period last year. Significant movements in the following accounts caused the decline
in assets:

*  Due from related parties dropped by P42.26 million compared with same period last vear
{trom P58.72 million last year Lo #16.46 million this vear). The Company collected P2.0
million from MMDC, an entity under common control, MMDC also advanced the
Company’s operating expenses totaling P1.34 million, which was offset from the
Company’s outstanding receivable. Lastly, the Company assigned the receivable from the
Parent Company 1o TMEE, (o offset with the note payable amounting to 38.5 million.

»  Property and equipment decreased by £1.96 million or 4.34% compared with same period
last year. primarily due to depreciation recognized during the vear,

*  Investment in an associate is lower by P76.80 million compared with same period last
vear. The decline in this account is mainly due to recognition of the share in net loss of an
associate during the vear (see Shave in net income (loss) of an associate above).

Liabilities of P1,672.96 million is lower by P37.27 million comparing with same period last
vear. mainly due to assignment of receivable amounting to #38.5 million from Parent Company
to TMEE, which was offset with the note payable.

The movement in Stockholder’s Equity is attributable to the net loss during the year
amounting to P384.64 million. This was slightly offset by the share in other comprehensive
income of an associale recognized this year, amounling o
P0.57 million.

Cash Flow

Audited Increase(Decrease)
2018 2017 Amount Ya
fin mitlions)

Cash used in operaling activities ?0.29 P13.93 (P13.64) (97.91}
Cash used in investing activitics .06 4.07 (4.01) (98.52)
Cash used in financing activities - 90.00 (90000 (100,00}

The cash used in operating activities this year is lower by P13.64 million or 97.91% versus same
period last year. No major disbursements were made during the vear, except for the Company's
operating expenses.
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There was

a minimal addition in properly and equipment this year, compared with last vear,

resulting to decrease in cash used in investing activities by P4.01 million or 98.52%.

In 2017, the Company paid P90.0 million of its notes payable. No payment has been made this vear,
hence, a decrease in cash used in fnancing activities by 100%.

2017 vs. 2016

Results of operations

Aundited Inerease(Decrease)
2017 2016 Amount %
{inn millions)
Revenues ?0.15 P0.24 (PO.09) (37.50}
Operating expenses 6.88 4.65 2.23 47.96
Share in net income of an
associale 15.57 1.70 |3.87 RI5.88
Met income (loss) F8.84 (F2.72) P11.56 (426.20)
Revenues

The Company incurred a net income of P8.84 million for the vear ended December 31, 2017 as
compared to 2016 net loss of P2.72 million.

Significant changes in the income accounts for the year ended December 31, 2017 versus the same
period Fast vear are as follows:

&  General and administrative expenses increased by P2.23 million or 47.96% due to the
following accounts:

Taxes and licenses increased by P0.18 million mainly due to filling fee paid for tender
offer to SEC.

Dutside services increased by PU.68 million or 144.25% pertains to publication of tender
offer to media, services paid to installation of server room, services for the appraisal of
property and the services of agency for maintenance of the office.

Director’s Fees increased by P0.03 million or equivalent to 24.59% due to lesser attendec
during BOD meetings.

Depreciation increased by P(.63 million or 37.91% due to the improvement of office
carly this vear,

Professional fees increased by P0.03 million or equivalent to 6.02% due to additional
legal expense mn 2017,

Communication, light and water increased by P0.05 million or equivalent to 28.25%. In

2016, the office space was vacant due to termination of lease contract to Prime Media
Holdings Inc.
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s Other expenses increased by P0.63 million, The increase pertains to insurance paid for
directors and officers liability, payment of PCD maintenance tee and office decoration

in 2017

#  Share in pet income of an Associate increased by £13.88 million due to increase in net

income of Marcventures Holdings Inc. in 2017.

Financial Position

Audited Increase{ Decreasc)
2017 2016 Amount Yo

(in millions)
Aszets P2,753.94 P1ER0.73 (126.79) (4.40%)
Liabilities 1,710.23 1.850.23 (140000  (7.57%)
Stockholders” Equity 1,043.71 1.030.50 1321  1.28%

The significant changes in the Stalement of Financial Position accounts during the calendar vear

ended December 31, 2017 versus 2016 are as follows:

#  Total assets decreased by P126.79 million or equivalent to 4.40% from P2.88 billion in 2016 to

P2.75 hillion in 2017,

Significant changes were mainly due to the following:

=

Cash decreased by P108.01 million or equivalent w 99.44% mainly due to payment of notes
payable amounting to P90 million.

Due from related parties decreased by P41.39 million or equivalent to 41.35% are due 10
payment made to related parties.

Other current assets increased by P1.76 million or equivalent to 28.39% primarily from
accumulaled Input VAT,

Investment in an associate increased by P19.94 million or equivalent 1o 0.76% the increase
is attributable to the share in equity of MARC.

Current liabilities decreased by P140.00 million or equivalent to 7.57% due to pavment
of £90.00 million and P50.00 assignment of receivable. Current liabilities comprise solely
ot #1,710.00 million current portion of leans with maturity date December 31, 2017, On
Auvgust 4. 2016, Philippine Business Bank (PBB) assigned the note pavable to Trans
Middle East Philippine Equities Inc. (TMEE).

The stockholders” equity increased by P13.21 million or equivalent to 1.28% from #1.03
billion in 2016 to #1.04 billien in 2017. The increase 15 due to the Company’s
comprehensive income of P13.21 million.

Cash Flow

Audited Increase(Decrease)
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2017 2016 Amount Yo
(in miltions)

Cash used in operating activities P13.93 37.40 (#23.47) 62.75
Cash used in investing activities 4.07 10:43 (6.36) 6{0.98
Cash used in financing activities 20.00 200,00 (110.00) 55.00

The cash provided by operating activities decreased from P37.40 million in 2016 to
P13.93 million in 2017, The company incurred a net income before income tax in 2017 of P8.84
million as compared to 2016 net loss of #2.72 million.

In 2017, the company s net cash used in investing activitics are the additional expenditures on the
improvement of office P4.07 million.

In 2017, the Company paid P90 million of its notes payable.
2016 vs. 2005

Results of operations

Audited Increase( Decreasc)
2016 2013 Amount Ya
fin millions)

Revenues 70.24 P1.55 (P1.31) (84.52)
Operating Expenses (4.65) (15.30) (10.63) (69.61)
Realized loss on AFS Investment = (28.41) 28.41 100.00

Share in nel income of an associate
1.69 12.20 (10.51) (86.15)
Net loss (F2.72) (F29497) (P27.25) (90.92)

Revenues

The Company incurred a net loss of P2.72 million for the vear ended December 31, 2016 as compared
1o 20105 net loss of #2997 million.

Significant changes in the income accounts for the vear ended December 31, 2016 versus the same
period last vear are as follows:

#  General and administrative expenses decreased by P10.65 million or 69.61% due to the
following accounts:

¢ Taxes and licenses deereased by P10.28 million or equivalent to 99.29% mainly due to
P10.25 million payment of Documentary Stamp Tax in relation to the Notes pavable entered
into by the Company with Philippine Business Bank.

¢ Director’s Fees decreased by £0.14 million or equivalent to 52.83% due to lesser directors
mectings.

* Depreciation increased by P0.09 million or 5.54% due to the Condominium.

»  Professional fees decreased by PO.13 million or equivalent to 19.19% due low cost on PSE
listing fiee as compared to 20135,

¢ Communication, light and water decreased by P0.02 million or equivalent to 12.77%
because the office space was vacant due to termination of lease contract to Prime Media
Holdings Inc.
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¢  Other expenses decreased by P(.14 million or equivalent to 40.79% the decrease pertains to
shorter period on fees payment made to Philippine Central Depository fee.

Realized loss on AFS investments decreased amounting to P28.4 million due to reclassification
of AFS lo Investment in an Associate in 2013,

Share in net income of an Associate decreased by 10.31 million due to decrease in net income
of Marceventures Holdings Inc. in 2016,

Financial Position

Audited Increase{ Decrease)
2016 2015 Amount Yo
{in milfions)
Assets P2,880.73 PI.082.53 (201807  (6.535%)
Liabilitics 1,850.23 2,050.33 (200.10)  (9.76%)
Stockholders’ Equity ) 1,030.50 1.032.20 1.70 0.16%

The significant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the calendar year
ended December 31, 2016 versus 2013 are as follows:

...U..

¥

Total assets decreased by F201.80 million or equivalent to 6.55% from 3.08 billion in 2015 to
P2.88 billion in 2016.

Significant changes were mainly due to the following:

+  Cash decreased by P247.82 million or equivalent to 69.53% mainly due to payment of notes
payable amounting to P200 million and advances to related parties.

= Receivables increased by #32.85 million or equivalent 1o 48.84% are advances made by
related partics.

*  Other current assets increased by P2.58 million or equivalent to 70.85% primarily from
accumulated Input VAT and construction deposit on office improvement.

* Investment in an associate increased by P2.71 million or equivalent to 0.10% the increasc
is attributable to the share in equity of MARC.

Current liabilities increased by P1,649.90 million or equivalent to 823.59% comprise solely of
P1,650.00 million noncurrent-portion of Loans with maturity date December 31, 2017. On
August 4, 2016, Philippine Business Bank assigned the note pavable to Trans Middle East
Philippine Equitics Inc.

The stockholders” equity decreased by P1.70 million or equivalent to 0.16% from
P1.03 billion in 2015 to P1.03 billion in 2016. The decrease due to the Company’s comprehensive
loss of P1.70 million.

Consolidated Cash Flow

Audited Increase(Decrease)
2016 2005 Amount Yo
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fin millions)

Cash used in operating activities PIT.40 Pl1.57 35.83 228217
Cash used in investing activities 10.43 1.57 3.86 36433
Cash used in [inancing activities 2010.00 200 =

The cash provided by operating activities decreased from #1.57 million in 2015 to P37.40 million
in 2016. The company incurred a net loss before income tax in 2016 of 2.72 million as compared
to 2015 of P29.96 million. In addition, accounts receivable increased by £32.85 million.

In 2016, the company’s net cash used in investing activitics are the acquisition of property and
equipment worth £10.43 million.

In 2016, the Company paid P200 million of its notes payable.

Key Performance Indicators

2016 | 2017 - 2018 |
Return on Asset (%) (0.00%) 0.00% (0.03%)
Return on Equity (%) (0.00%) 0.01% | (0.08%)

I/Return on assets (ROA) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net 10ss) to average
assels.
2/ Return on equity (ROE) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to average
cquily.

Item 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements and schedules listed in the accompanying Index to Financial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are filed as part of this Form 17-A (see attached 2018 Audited Financial
Statements).

Ttem 8. INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER RELATED
MATTERS

External Auditors

The Company re-appointed Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC) as its independent external auditor for the
calendar year ended December 31, 2018, RTC is a leading professional services firm with a proven
track record of high quality work. They provide value-added services to clients through their client
caring team of outstanding audit, tax and business professionals who utilize leading-edge svstems and
technology and are guided by the highest standards of quality, integrity and competence.

For the audit of the Company’s Annual financial statemenis and services provided in connection with
statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounis to be billed or already billed
excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses (OPL) by RTC amounts/amounted o £0.30 million and
70.25 million for 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Audit Committee recommends to the Board the selection of external auditors considering
independence and effectiveness.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

"The Company has no disagreements with its accountants.

ad
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Changes and adoption of new Accounting Standards are fully summarized under Note 2 to Financial
Statements.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION FOR THE 3rd QUARTER

ftem 1. — Financial Statements

The unaudited Financial Staternents of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments. Inc. (“the Company™)
as at September 30, 2019 (with comparative audited Statements of* Financial Position as at
December 31. 2018), and lor the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2018 is in
compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there were no changes made in
accounting policies and methods of computation in the preparation of the interim financial statements.

Summary of statements of {inancial position as at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

September 30, 2019  December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) { Audited) Increase (decrease)
Amount Percentage
(P 000) (£°000) (B7000)

Current assels 7214368 P26.0235 (P1.657) (6.37%)
Noncurrent assets 2.579.612 2,606,583 (26.971) (1.03%)
Total Assels 2,603,950 P2.632.608 (P28.628) (1.09%)
Current Liabilities P1.673,579 P1.672.960 P619 0.04%
Equity 930,401 959.648 (29,247 (3.05%)
Total Liabilities and Equity 72,603,980 PA.632.608 (P28.628) (1.09%)

Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended September 30, 2019 and 201 8:

For the three months ended

For the nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(P1000) (#7000) (#°000) (B2000)
General and administrative expenses (F1.074) (P1,118) (P3,730) (P4 124

Share in net income (loss) of an

associate 25932 2.307 (25.517) 4,301
Interest income 0 0 0 1
Income (loss) P24.858 PL.189 (£29,247) P78

Summary of unaudited stalements of cash flows for the three months and nine months period ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018§:

For three months ended For nine .:.:;mw ended

September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(F000) (P°000) (P 000) (B 000)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (P420) Fis5s (P21a)

(P384)

Cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities = - =

taa
Laa
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Net increase (decrease) in cash (384) (420) N 155 (216}
Cash at beginning of period 798 814 259 610
Cash at end of period P414 P304 Pdl4 P394

ftem 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

Resulis of Operation

Nine months ended September 30, 2019 compared with nine monihs ended September 30, 2018

Revene
The Company is not vet operating, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposits. No significant movement in the Company’s interest income.

General and administrative expenses
Total general and administrative expenses for the period of 3.73 million is lower by £0.39 million ar
9.56% compared with same period last vear. Significant movements are attributed to the following

i Depreciation
"The decline in depreciation by P0.08 million or 5.13% compared with same period last vear,
is mainly attributed to the fully-depreciated service vehicle of the Company. which was already
fully amortized since February 2018. The same vehicle was sold on April 20, 2018 {see Note
6).

b, Professional fees
The decrease in professional fees by P0.06 million or 10.73% is mainly due to lower annual
listing e this year, as compared with same period last vear.

c.  Outside services
Qutside services this period amounting to 20,32 million is lower by £0.17 million or 34.33%
compared with same period last vear. This is due to the payments made [or the design,
production and printing of the Company’s annual report last vear,

Share in net income (loss) of an associate

The Company’s share in net loss of an associate amounted to 2552 million this period. This is lower
by P29.82 million, comparing with same period last year. MARC. an associate, is in net loss position
as of September 3{), 2019, as opposed Lo nel income position same period in 2018,

Three months ended September 30, 2019 compared with three _months  ended
September 30, 2018

Revenue
The Company is nol vel operating, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposits. No significant movement in the Company s interest income.

Creneral and administrative expenses

Total gencral and administrative expenses for the period amounting to 1.07 million has declined
slightly by £0.04 million or 3.96% comparing with the same period last vear. No significant expenses
has been incurred by the Company for the period.

Share in net incame of an associate

The Company’s share in net income of an associale amounted to 25.93 million this period. This is
higher by £23.64 million. comparing with same period last year. MARC s results of operations has
mmproved during the three months of the year.
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Statemerts of Financial Position

The significant changes in the statement of financial position accounts during the nine months ended
September 30, 2019 compared with the December 31, 2018 level are as follows:

s (Jash
I'he Company cash balance has increased by $0.15 million or 39.77%. The movement is mainly
due Lo collection of P2.0 million of receivable from a related party and #0.87 million advances
made by an affiliate for the Company’s working capital requirements, which was offset by
payments made pertaining to the Company’s operating expenses.

s Due from related parties
The decrease in this account by $2.0 million is mainly due to collection of receivables from a
related party during the period.

o (Mher current assets
The increase in other current assets is mainly attributable to additions in Input VAT from purchase
of domestic services, totaling P{0.16 million during the period.

s Property and equipment
Decrease in property and equipment by £1.45 million is mainly due to depreciation for the period.
No additions and/or disposals were made in 2019,

o [nvestmenl in an associate
The Company’s investment in an associate has declined by £25.52 million, which movement
represents the share in net loss of an associate during the period.

o decrued expenses and other curvent liabilifies
This account decreascd by P0.25 million or 53.93%, due to payments made on the previous
vear's aeeruals.

o Due o a related parey
There is an increase of #0.87 million or 86.60% due to additional advances from an affiliate,
which was used by the Company for its working capital requirements,

®  Retained earnings

The decline in retained earnings by P29.25 million, pertains to the nct loss recognized for the
period.

Statements of Cavh Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30. 2019 amounts to
P0.15 million, while cash used in operating activitics in same period last vear was £0.22 million.
Increase in cash [or the current period is the net result of the following significant transactions:

* Payment of operating expenses during the period.
*  Advances made by an affiliate totaling £0.87 million.
= Collection of 2.0 million from a related party.

ed
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HORIZONTAL AND VERTICIAL ANALYSIS

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Increase {Decrease)

(Unaudited) ~ {(Audited) Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash P413,553 P258.845 P154,708  39.77%
Due from related parties 14,455,581 16.455,58] (2,000,000 (12.15%)
Other current assets 9,498,550 9.310,757 187,793 2.02%
Total Current Assets 24.367.684 26,025,183 {1.637.499)  (6.37%)
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment 41,684,903 43,138,202 (1,453,299  (3.37%)
Investment in an associate 2.537,927.153 2.563.444.406  (25,517.253)  (1.00%)
Total Noncurrent Assets 2.579.6012.0506 2.606,582.608 (269705527 (1.03%)
22.603,979,740 P2,632,607.791 (P28.628.051) (1.09%)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liahilities P210,969 P457,906 (P246.,937) (533.93%)
Due to a related party 1,866,031 1,000,000 866,031  86.60%
Note payable 1,671,501,723 1,671,501,723 = =
- Total Current Liabilities 1,673,578.723 1,672,939 629 619,094 0.04%
Equity
Capital stock 340,660,700 840,660,700 = .
Retained eamings 82,393,947 111,641,092 (29.247.145) (26.20%)
Other comprehensive income 7,346,370 7.346,370 = ==
Total Equity 930,401,017 0530.648,162 (29247 145)  (3.05%)
£2,603,979,740 P2.632.607.791 (P28,628,051) (1.09%)
36
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Kev Performance Indicators

September 30, 2019  September 30, 2018

Net income (loss) (P29.247,145) P177.144
Quick assels 14,869,134 56.684.643
Current assets 24.367,684 03.316.067
Total Assets 2.603.979.740 2,754.101.053
Current liabilities 1.673.578.723 1710211589
Total liabilities 1,673,578,723 1.710.211.589
Stockholders’ Equity 930,401,017 1.043,889.464
MNumber of common shares outstanding 1,528.474.000 1.528.474.000

Liquidity ratios:

Current ratio {1} 0.01:1 0.04:1
Cuick ratio (2} 0.01:1 0.03:1
Solvency Ratios:
Debt ratic (3) 0.64:1 0.62:1
Debt to Equity ratio (4) 1.80:1 1.64:1
Profitability ratios: -
Return on equity (5) . {0.03) (.0002
Retumn on assets (6) (0.01) (0.0001
_Income (loss) per share (7) e {0.02) oot

Other Information

a. Any known trends, demands, commitments. events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

Nothing to disclose

b. Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

Nothing to disclose

Loy

All material off-balance sheel transactions, arrangements. obligations (including contingent
obligations). and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or other
persens created during the reporting period.

Nothing to disclose

d. Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

Mothing to disclose

¢.  Any known trends, evenis or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expeeted to have
a material [avorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing
operations,

Nothing to disclose
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f. Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s continuing
operations.

MNothing to disclose

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER(S) THE CORPORATION
UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH SAID STOCKHOLDER(S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A,
FREE OF CHARGE, EXCEPT FOR THE EXHIBIT ATTACHED THERET(, WHICH SHALL BE
CHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A AND
17-Q) SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty. Maila Lourdes (5. De Castro- ¢/o 4 Floor Citibank Center,

Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on 11

November 2019,

Bright Kindle Resources &
Investments Inc. (formerly Bankard Inc.)

Maila Lourdes G. De Castro
Corporate Secretary

Informarion Statement
2008 Annyal Stockheldors ' Meeting
SEC Form 20- 15



REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIFTINES )
MAKATICITY 155,

SECRETARY’'S CERTIFICATE

I, MAILA LOURDES G. DE CASTRO, of legal age, Filipino, with office address at 4t
Floor, Citibank Center, Paseo de Roxas Ave., Makali City, being the duly elected and qualified
Corporate Secretary of BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC. (the
“Corporation”), a corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the Philippines
with prindpal office address al 16! Floor, Citibank Tower, FPaseo de Roxas, Makat City,
hereby certify that as of the date of this Certification, none of the directors or officers of the
Corporation are employed by or connected with any government agencies or its
instrumentalities.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my rwﬁ@@ﬁ Mm MD._@.H_G_ of

_ 2018 pl A TUEET

—

VA

MAILA LOURDES G, DE CASTRO
Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this nmupﬂn._”.H h M@u._q 2015 at

ARKATLGETt exhibited to me her Driver's License No. N02-95-296472 expiring on 18
October 2021.

Doc. No. @
Page No. Ww
Book No. -
Series of 2019,

UMD DEEMEER 31 2020
PIRIS, 7333404 1 07-02- 70 MAKAE
EFND.EES15Y LIFETIME “EMBER
T, ROLARS TOAVTROLLNG. /006
BICLE ¢ bL - HTIE R0, ¥-00085934
AT 02 PEMINGELA COURT BLDE
YTk MAKATI EVE., MAKATI CITY




CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, CARLOS ALFONSO T. OCAMPO, Filipino, of lepal age and with office Address at 28th
Floor, Pacific Star Building, Makati Avenue comer Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makad City, after having
been duly swom to inaccordance with law do hereby declare that

1. I am elected for Independent Director  of BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES &
INVESTMENTS, INC. (“BKR™) and have been its independent director since January 2014
(where applicable).

2 | am affilisted with the following companies or organizations (including Government
Owned and Controlled Corporations):

COMPANY /ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF
o ] SERVICE
Mareventures Holdings, Inc. Independent Director August M._u.k_ 3 1o Present
Ocampo & Manalo Law Firm Senior Parner | October 1997 to
. ) I._“.uﬂm_”mm._....._.

MAA General .&mmznmunl..m Phils, | Ite, ﬁ%d_wnmn . s March 2003 to Present
| South Forbes City College Corporation Direcror ‘May 2009 o Present

Asian Carmakers Corporation Director . April 2008 o Present

Jam Transit, lnc. B Direcror July 2009 to Present
...Huu._wmn._mn Cats, Inc. B Dhrector . ..Eb.mum.@ﬂm to Present

Timebound Trading Corparation Ditector Apdl 2013 to Present

Monpierre Foods Corporation Director December 2011 to

) . B Prosent [

Adrianse Phils. Tnc. ) Drirector/ Corporate Secretary March m:._u.IE Present
Bluelion Motors Corp. Dhirector/ Corporate Secretary . February 1999 1o
o ) ) Present

Tirst Charters & Tours Transport Corp, Dhrector/ Corporate Secretary July 2012 ¢ Present

Brycl Resorts Intemational Ihe, Directar Cotporate Secretary Jaly 2009 to ﬂ.mmwﬂﬁ
Autohaus CQuezon City, Inc, Huunn.bma ﬁaﬁoﬂﬁm.mmﬂm;? 1. April 2008 to Present
 AVK Philippines, Ine. | Director/ Corporate Secretary | Jualy 2000 to Present
| Jam Liner, Tne. - Direcror/ Cotporate Secretary Jully 2009 to Present
“ Manila Golf & Country Club _| Gorporate Secretary Aprdl 2008 1o ﬁ:annﬂ|.
| Solen [nmovations Holdings Ine. Direcror Movember 2016 o

i ) | Present
Integrated Bar of the Philippines Mernber i

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independent
Director of, as provided for in Section 38 of the Sccudties Regulaton Code, its Implementing
Rules and Reguladens and other SEC issuances,

4. 1 am related to the following directur/officer/substantial shareholder af (covered compeny
and its subsidianes and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of
the Secuntes Repulation Code, (whetre applicable)




" NAME OF . COMPANY NATURE OF
DIRECTOR/OFFICER/ RELATIONSIHIP
SUBSTANTLAL
SHAREHOLDER )
_ NA : NA NA

5. To the best of my knowledge, T am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or  proceeding / I disclose that I am the subject of the following
crimingl/adininistrative Investigation of proceeding (a5 the case may be):

'OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGLNCY STATUS
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED INVOLVED -
NA B | NA . NA

G. (For those in government service/affiliated with a poverntnent agency or GOCC) 1 have
the required wiitten permission or consent from the (head of the agency {department) to be an
independent director in, pursuant o Office of the President Memorandum Circular Nevw 17
and Sccdon 12, Rule XVIII of the Revised Civil Service Rules.

7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my dutes and responsibilities az  independent
director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations,
Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. T shall mnform the Corporate Svcretary of any chanpes in the above mentioned information
within five days from Its occurrence,

21 OCT 2019

._U_ﬁ._D.m._ thix ¥ ._”“_.._m ] at =fn iRl

SUBSCRTBTI) AND SWORN to before me this n”_\

day of o Makati City

affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport with Passport mimber
P2096384A issued at DFA Manila on 02 March 2017 and valid undl 01 March 2022

S

Thac. ?D.|m.- &
PageNo.__ 4% (3T

Book Mo [ . Appoanment

Sedes of 2019, Lintit 37
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FIENo 7338145 01 /04 /19, Makat City

P No 060536; 01/04/19; Maiat City
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

|, Felix Cesar L. Zerrudo, Filipino, of legal age and with office Address at 2735 Zenaida St., Brgy.
Poblacion, Makati City, after having been dulv swom to in accordance with faw do hereby declars

that;

i. 1am a nominee for Independent Director of BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
{"BKR"} for its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 10 December 2018.

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations [including Government-Owned

and Controlled Corporations)h:

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION POSITION/RELATIONSHIP PERIOD OF SERVICE
ASIAN APPRAISAL COMPANY INC. PRESIDENT AND COO Since 2009 UP TO PRESENT
AMALGAMATED PROIECT MANAGEMENT PRESIDENT SINCE 2009 UP TO PRESENT
SERVICES INC.
ASIAN ASSET INSURANCE BROKERAGE CORP. | PRESIDENT SINCE 2009 UP TO PRESENT
PROFESSIONAL FUNDING SERVICES INC. PRESIDENT SINCE 2012 UP TO PRESENT
AE PROTEINA INDUSTRIES INC. GENERAL SINCE 2017 UP TO PRESENT
) MANAGER/TREASURER
TOP TEAM DYNAMICS INCORPORATED | DIRECTOR SINCE 2013 UP TO PRESENT
| -
_
1

3. | possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an Independsat
Director of, as provided for in Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Cade, its Implementing Rules

and Regulations and other SEC Issuances.

4 [ am related to the following directorfofficer/substantial shareholder of {covered com

its subsidiaries and affiliates) other than the relationship provided under Rule 38.2.3 of the
Securities Regulation Code, (where applicable)

NAME OF DIRECTOR/OFFICER/
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

COMPANY

NATURE OF RELATIONSHIP

NA

NA

NA

5. To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any pending criminal or administrative
investigation or proceeding /| disclose that I am the subject of the following criminal/administrative
investigation or proceeding (as the case may be):

OFFENSE TRIBUNAL OR AGENCY STATUS |
CHARGED/INVESTIGATED INVOLVED “
NA NA NA _ﬁ

6. {For those in government service/affiliated with a government agency or GOCC) | have the
required written permission or consent from the (head of the agency/department} to he an
independent director in, pursuant to Office of the President Memorandum Circular No. 17 and
Section 12, Rule XVIH of the Revised Civil Service Rules. '




7.1 shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as independent director
under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of
Corporate Governance and other SEC issuances.

8. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of any changes in the above mentioned information within
five days from its occurrence,

Done, this mﬁ.,quwx _O mh@.ﬁ .MM% QF MAK AT

FELIX CESAR L. ZE DO

Affiant
NOV 0 6 2018 |
v R T
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of Cig ¥ OF MAVESL o+ ersonally
gopeared before me and exhibited to me his issyed at -

and valid until

ATTY VIRCIAG T BATALLA

WESTANE BUY 1 FOB MARAT CTy

. £ : 1 CITY
Doc. No._|27¥ ; ARPT.EUL wfav- amrn pec. 33, 3020
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES

9.

REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2) (b) THEREUNDER

For the quarlerly period ended September 30, 2019
Commission Identification Number 102165
BIR Tax Identification No. 000-803-498-000

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter: BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES &
INVESTMENTS, INC.

Philippines
Province, Country or other jurizdiction of imcorporation or organization

Industry Classification Code: SEC Use Only)

16" Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1209
Address of issuer’s principal office Postal Code

632 / B3A3-0769
Registrant's telephone number, including ares code

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report

10. Sceurities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Coade, or Sections 4 and & of the

REA

Nurnber of Shares of Common Stock
Title of Each Class Outstanding and Amount of Deht Outstanding

Common Stock, P0L.55 par value 1,528,474,000 (as of 09/30/19)

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?

Yes [x] No[]

12. Indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 1(a)-1 thereunder, and
Sections 26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines, during the
preceding 12 months (or for shorter period the registrant was required to file such
reports):

Yes [x] Nal]

(b) has been subjest to such filing requirements for the past 80 days
Yes [x] Na[]
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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Hlem 1. - Finapcial Statements

The unaudited Financial Statements of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. (“the Company™)
as at September 30, 2019 (with comparative audited Statements of Financial Position as al December
31, 2018), and for the threc months and nine months ended September 30, 2018 is in compliance with
generally accepted accounting principles and there were no changes made in accounting policies and
methods of computation in the preparation of the interim financial statermenis,

Summary of statements of financial position as at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unandited) {Audited) Increase (decrease)
Amount Percenlage
F000) {F'000) (F'000)

Current assets ¥24.368 P26,025 (B1,657) (6.374%)
Noncurrent assets 2,579,612 2,606,583 (26.971) {1.03%)
Total Assels P2.603,980 F2.632608 (P28,628) (1.09%)
Current Liabilities ¥1,673,579 P1,672,960 P619 0.04%
Equity 930,401 050648 (29,247) (3.05%)
Total Liabilities and Equity P2,603.950 P2.632,608 (¥28.628) (1.09%)

Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended September 30, 2019 and 2015:

For the three months ended For the ninc months ended

September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(22000 (£°000) (®°000) (P 000)
General and administrative expenses {FL,074) (P1,118) (F3,730) (F4.124)

Share in ncl income (loss) of an

associate 25,932 2,307 (25,517) 4,301
Interest income 0 0 ] 1
Income (loss) P24.858 P1,189 (£29.247) P178

Summary of unaudited statements of cash flows for the three months and nine months period ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018:

For three months ended  For nine months ended

September 30, September 30,
2019 2018 2019 2018
(F'000) (F000) (P 000) (P°000)
Cash provided by (used in) operating activities (P384) {F420) i 1 {F216)
Cash provided by (used in) investing activities — - - -
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities - = - -
Net increase (decrease) in cash (384) (420) 155 (216)
Cash at beginning of period 798 814 259 614
Cash at end of period . P414 P394 P414 F394




Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finaneial Condition and Results of Operation

Hesulie of Operation

Nine months ended September 30, 2019 compared with nine months ended September 30, 2018

Revenue
The Company is not yet operaling, hence, revenues generated mainly comes from interest on bank
deposits. No sipnificant movement in the Company’s interest income.,

General and adminisirative expenses
Total general and administrative expenses for the period of £3.73 million is lower by P39 million or
8.56% compared with same period last vear. Significant movements are attributed 1o the following

a. Depreciation
The decline in depreciation by P0.08 million or 5.13% compared with same period last vear, is
mainly attributed to the fullv-depreciated service vehicle of the Company, which was already
fully amortized since February 2018. The same vehicle was sold on April 20, 2018 (see Note 6).

b Professional fees
The decrease in professional fees by P0.06 million or 10.73% is mainly due to lower annual
listing fee this year, as compared with same period Jast vear.

e, Oulside services
Qutside services this period amounting to P0.32 million is lower by P0.17 million or 34.33%
compared with same period last year. This is due to the payinents made for the design,
production and printing of the Company’s annusl report last vear.

Share in net income (loss) of an associate

The Company’s share in nct loss of an associate amounted to P25.52 million this period. This i lower
by P29.82 million, comparing with same period last year. MARC, an associale, is in net loss position
as of September 30, 2019, as opposed to net income position same period in 2018,

Three months ended September 30, 2019 compared with three months ended
September 30, 2018

Revernye

The Company is not yet operating, hence, revenues pencrated mainly comes from interest on hank
depasits. No significant movement in the Company’s interest income.

Generval and administrative expenses

Total general and administrative expenses for the period amounting to #1.07 million has declined
shghtly by P0.04 million or 3.96% compering with the same period last vear, No significant expenses
has been incurred by the Company for the period.

Share in net income of an associare
The Company’s share in net income of an associate amounted to $25.93 million this period, This is

higher by P23.64 million, comparing with same period last year. MARC's results of operations has
improved during the three months of the vear.



Statements of Finaneial Position

The significant changes in the statement of financial position accounts during the nine months ended
September 30, 2019 compared with the December 31, 2018 level are as follows:

=  Cash
The Company cash balance has increased by B0.15 million or 59.77%. The movement is mzinly
due to collection of P2.0 million of reccivable from a related party and P0.87 million advances
made by an affiliate for the Company’s working capital requirements, which was offset by
payments made pertaining to the Company’s operating cxpenses.

o Due from related partics
The decrcase in this account by P2.0 million is mainly due to collection of reeeivables from a
related party during the period.

e Other current assels
The inerease in other current assets is mainly attributable to additions in Input VAT from purchase
of domestic services, lolaling £#0.16 million during the periad.

o FProperty and equipment
Decrease in property and equipment by #1.45 million is mainly due to depreciation for the period.
No additions and/or disposals were made in 2019.

" Investment in an associale

The Company’s investment in an associate has declined by P25.52 million. which movement
represents the share in net loss of an associate during the period.

o Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
This account decreased by P0.25 million or 53.93%, due to payments made on the Previous year's
accruals.

o Due foa related party
There is an increase of P0.87 million or 86.60% due to additional advances from an alfiliate, which
was used by the Company for its working capital requirements.

*»  Hetained earnings
The decline in retained earnings by $29.25 million. pertains to the net loss recognized for the
period.

Slatements of Cash Flows

Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2019 amounts to
PO.15 million, while cash used in operating activitics in same period last year was $0.22 million.
Increase in cash for the current period is the net result of the following significant transactions:

e Payment of operating expenses during the perod.
¢ Advances made by an affiliste totaling #0.87 million.
¢ Collection of P2.0 million from a related party.



HORIZONTAL AND VERTICIAL ANALYSIS

September 30, 2019 December 31,2018 Increase (Decreasc)

{Unaudited) {Audited) Amounl Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash B413,553 BI5E B435 P154,708 59.77%
Due from related parties 14,455,581 16,455,581 (2,000,000 (12.15%)
Other current assets 9,498,550 9.310,757 187.793 2.02%
Total Current Assels 24,367,684 26025183 (1,657,499 (6.37%)
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment 41,684,203 43 138,202 (1.453.299)  (3.37%)
Investment in an associate 2,537,927,153 2,563,444 406  (25.,517.253)  (1.00%)
_Total Noncurrent Assets 2.579.612,056 2.606,582,608  (26.970.552) (1.03%)
B2.603.979.740 P2.632,607.791 (P28,628.051) (1.09%)
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liahilities 210,969 P457.906 (F246,937) (33.93%)
Due to a related party 1,866,031 1,000,000 Be5,031  E6.60%
MNote payahle 1,671,501,723 1,671,501,723 = -
Total Current Liabilities 1.673,578,723 1,672,959,629 619,004 {(0.04%
Equity
Capital stock 240,660,700 540,660,700 = =
Eetained earnings 82,393,947 111,641,092 (29,247,145 (26.20%)
Other comprehensive income 7.346,370 7.346,370 = -
Total Equity 930,401,017 959,648,162 (29,247,145)  (3.05%)
¥2,603,979.740 B2,632.607,791 (P28,625.051) (1.09%)




Key Performance Indicators

__ Scptember 30, 2019 September 30, 2018

Net income (loss) (F29,247,145) P177,144
Quick assets 14,869,134 56,684,643
Current assets 24,367,684 83,316,067
Total Assets 2.603,979.740 2.754,101,053
Current liabilities 1.,673,578,723 1,710.211,589
Total liabilities 1,673,578,723 1.710,211,589
Stockholders® Equity 930,401,017 1,043 BED 464
Number of common shares outstanding 1,528.474,000 1.528.474.000

_Liquidity ratios:

Current ratio (1) 0.01:1 1.04:1
Quick ratio (2) 0.01:1 0.03:1
Solvency Ratios:
Debt ratio (3) 0.64:1 0.62:1
Debt to Equity ratio {4) 1.80:1 o4l
Profitability ratios: ) ) —
Beturn on equity (5) B _(0.03) i 0.0002
Return on assets (6) ) . (0.01) {0.0001
Income (loss) per share (7) - o2y (.0001

Other Information

i,

Eﬂgeﬂqsﬁﬁ:nm,ﬁﬁnﬁﬁum,ncEE_.ﬁannFmﬁﬁ??tﬁnﬁ.ﬁbﬁﬂ%%ﬁEwma_mmEEﬁ.mm_
impact on the issuer’s liquidity. :

Nothing to disclose.

Any events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration of an obligation.

Nothing to disclose.

All material off-balance sheet transactions, amrangements. obligations (inchuding contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the company with unconsolidated entities or olher
persons created during the reporting period,

Nothing to disclose.

Any material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments
and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

Nothing 1o disclose.
Amy known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably cxpected to have
a material favorable or unfavorable impact on nel sales‘revenuesfincome from continuing

operalions.

Nothing to disclose.
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f. Any significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the issuer’s contimuing
operations.

Nothing to disclose,

PART IT - OTHER INFORMATION

The Company may. at its option, report under this item any information not previously reported in a
report on SEC Form 17-C. If disclosure of such information is made under this Part 11, it need not be
repeated in & report on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respect to such
information or in a subsequent report on Form 17-Q).

PART Il - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

September 30, 2019 September 30, 2018
Liquidity Ratio
Current Ratio .01 0.04
Current asscts 24,367,684 65,316,067
Current liabilities . 1,673,578,723 1,710,211,588
Quicit Ratio 0.01 0.03
Chuick aszet 14,860,134 36,684,643
Current lighilities 1,673.578,723 1.,710,211,584
Solvency Ratio
Diahi Raiio .64 0.62
Total liabilities 1,673,578,723 1,710,211,58%
Total assels 2.603,979,740 2,754,101 0153
Debt-to-equity Ratio L.80 1.64
Total liabilities 1,673,578,723 1,710,211,589
Total eguity 030,401,017 1,043,889 464
Profitability Ratio
Asset-to-eguity Ratio 2.80 2.64
Total assets 2,603,979,740 2,754,101,053
Total equity 930,401,017 1.043.880 464
Retwrn on Equity Rario (0.03) 0.0002
Net income (loss) (29,247,145) 177,144
Average shareholder’s equity 045024590 1.043,800.892
Return on Assets (0.01) (0.0001
Net income (loss) (29,247.145) 177,144
Averape total assets 2,618.293,766 2,754,022 470
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Note {Unauodited) (Audited)
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 P413,553 P25E B45
Due from related parties 12 14,455,581 16,455,581
Other current assets 5 9,498,550 0.310,757
Total Current Assets 24,367,684 26,025,183
Noneurrent Assets
Property and equipment il 41,684,903 43,138,202
Investment in an assoeiate 7 2.537,927,153 2.563,444.406
Total Noncwrrent Assets 2,579.612,056 2,606,582.608
P2,603.979,740 F2.632.607.79]
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilities
Accrued expenses and other current labilities B P210,96Y9 P457,906
Due to a related party 12 1,866,031 1,000,000
Mote payahle 9 1.671,501,723 1,671,501,723
Total Current Lighilities 1,673.878,723 1.672 959,620
Equity :
Capital stock 840,660,700 Bd0.660, 700
Retained eamings 82,393,947 111,641,092
Other comprehensive income 7,346,370 7,346.370
Total Equity 930,401,017 959 648,162
F2,603,979,740 P2.632.607.79]

See accompanying Netes io Fingneial Statements,



BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three Months Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 30, September 30,
Note 2019 2018 2019 2018
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSES 11 (PL.073,919)  (P1,118,234) (F3,730334)  (P4.124.48%)
SHARE IN NET INCOME (LOSS)

OF AN ASSOCIATE 7 25,931,749 2.306,779 (25,517.253) 4,300,755
INTEREST INCOME 4 252 313 442 77
INCOME (LOSS) P24,855.082 P1ISR.8SE  (P29.247.145) PI77.144
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND

DILUTED 13 P02 PO.OOI (F0.02) PO.ODO]

See aecompanying Nates to Financial Statements.
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RVM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Mote September 30, 2019 September 30, 2018

CAPITAL STOCK - $0.55 par value 10
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares
Issued. subscribed and outstanding -

1,528,474.000 shares E40,660.700 PEA 660,700
REETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of period 111,641,092 196,278,091
Net incomge (loss) (29.247,145) 177,144
Balance at end of period 82,303 047 196,455,235
Share in other comprehensive income of an

associate: 7.346,370 6,773,529
TOTAL EQUITY Po30.401.017 1,043,889 464

Ser accompanying Notes to Financin! Stalemenrs.
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended September 30,

Nate 2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income (loss} before tax (P29,247,145) F177,144
Adjustments for:

Share in net loss (income) of an associate 7 25,517,253 {4,300,755)

Depreciation i} 1,453,200 1,531 Rda

Interest income 4 (442} (877)
Operating loss before working capital changes (2.277,035) {2,592.642)
Diecrease (increasc) in:

Due from related parties 2,000,000 2,418,000

Other current asscls (187.,7493) {22,150}
Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued expenses and other current labilities (246,937) {19,578}

Due 1o a related party 866,031 =
Net cash provided by (used in) operations 154,266 (216,770)
Inieresi received 442 R77
INCREASE (DECREASE) TN CASH 154,708 (215,893)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 258,845 610,059
CASH AT END OF PERIOD P413. 553 Pi0O4.166

Sec accompanying Notes to Financial Statemerniy,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of BYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Mounths Ended September 31),

MNote 209 2018

CASIT FLLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Income before tax P24.858,082 P1,188 855
Adjustments for:

Share in net income of an associate 7 (25,931,749 (2,306,779)

Depreciation 6 484,136 451,566

Imierest income 4 (252) (313)
Operating loss before working capital changes (589,783) (636,668)
Decrease (increase) in:

Due from related parties 500,000 373,000

Other current assets (137,120) (156,999)
Increase (decrease) i

Accrued expenses and other current liabilitics (157.379) 214
Net cash provided (used in) by operations (384,282) {420,453)
Interest received 252 313
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (384,030) (420,140)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 707,583 814,306
CASH AT END OF PERIOD . P413.553 $394 166

See noeompanying Notes (o Fingneial Statementy,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

General Information
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc. (the Company), formerly Bankard, Ine, was incorporated
and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on December 4, 1981 as
a credit card corporation, On March 21, 1995, the Company listed its shares with The Philippine Stock
Exchange, Inc. (PSE}.

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) of Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation (RCBC)
approved the sale of its 89.98% collective stake in the Company 1o RYM Business Management Corp.
(the Parent Company) and other investors. The Parent Company acguired 76.56% interes! in the
Company.

In November 2013, the BOD approved the amendment to change the corporale name to Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to a holding company.

The Company’s principal office address is at 16th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Maka
City.

Investment in Marcventores Holdings, Ine. (MARC)

On December 15, 2014, the Company acquired 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing 33% equity
interest for £2,604.0 million from the Philippine Business Bank - Trust and Investment Center (PBE)
(see note 7).

On December 29, 2017, the SEC approved the application of the merger of MARC, Brightgreen
Resources Holdings Ine. (BHI) and Asia Pilot Mining Phils. Corp. (APMPC), with MARC as the
surviving entity. MARC issued 1,125,000.000 sharcs to BUT and APMPC resulting 1o g reduction of the
Company’s equity interest in MARC to 20%. In 2018, MARC issucd 45,731,706 shares at B1.64 shares
or a total of 75 million to a major stockholder resulting to a reduction of the Cotnpany’s equity mnlcrest
in MARC to 19.90%,

Un February 13, 2017, Marcventures Mining and Devclopment Corporation (MMDC), & subsidiary of
MARC, received an order dated February &, 2017 from the Department. of Environment and Natural
Resources cancelling its Mineral Production Sharing Agreernent (MPSA). The manasgement and its legal
counsel believe that the order has no basis and the outcome of legal actions {aken will not have a
material adverse effect on the MMDC's operations.

MMDC’s management will take all the necessary legal actions and exhaust all remedies available 1o
prevent the implementation of the order. The management and its legal counsel believe that the order
has no basis and the outcome of legal actions taken will be in favor of the Company. MMDC has
continued i1s mining operations in the areas covered by the MPSA.

On February 22, 2017, MMDC has filed a Notice of Appeal 10 Office of the President,



2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards
(PAS) and Philippine Interprelations of issuances by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted hy the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

Measurcment Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company”s functional and
presentation currency. All values represent shsolute amounts except otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally
based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for an asset and fair value of the
consideration received in exchange for incurring a liabiliry,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
Iransaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 1o measure fir
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unohservable inputs.

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an asset
or a liahility. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

* Level1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

¢ Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the Towest level mmput that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly ohservable.

* Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For assets and habilities that are recogmized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categotization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) atl the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characleristics and risks of the assat or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value iz included in Note 15,
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies.
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Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policics adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except ior the
adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopied effective for annual
periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2018:

o PFES O, Financial Instruments — This standard replaces PAS 39, Financia! Tnstrumenis:
Hecognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of FFRS 9). Tt provides requirements
for the classification and measurcment of financial assels and liabilitics, impairment, hedge
accounting, recopnition. and derecognition.

PI'RS 9 requires all recognized financial assets 1o be subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value (through profit or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on their
classification by reference 1o the business model within which these are held and its contracius] cash
Now characteristies,

For financial liabilities, the most significant cffect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liahility is recopnized in
other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or Joss), unless this creates an accounting
mistnatch.

For the impairmenl of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credit loss™ (ECL) model
based on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract: recognition of a
credit loss should no longer wait for there to be an objective evidence of impairment.

‘or hedge accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to

better reflect how risk menagement activitics are undertaken when hedging financial and non-
financial risk exposures.

The derecogmition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39.

Based on the Company’s analysis of ils business model and the contractual cash low characlerstics
ol its financial assets and liabililies as at January 1, 2018, the Company has concluded that all of ils
financial assets and liabilities shall continue to be measured on the same basis as under FAS 39 bu
shall be classified under PFRS 9. The Company has adopted PFRS 9 retrospectively.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables under PAS 39 are classified as financial assets at
amortized cost under PFRS 9. These financial assets include cash in banks and due from related

parlics. Accordingly, there were no changes in the carrying amount of the financial assets upon
adoption of PFRS 9.

The Company assessed that the adoption of PFRS 9, specifically on determining impairment loss
using general approach. has no impaet on the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets
carried at amortized cost.

There is no material impact on the basic and diluted camings per share as a result of the Company’s
adoption of PFRS 9.

* PFRS 15, Revenue from Comtract with Customers — The new standard replaced PAS 11,
Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue and related nterpretations. I+ establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue recognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core principle (hased on a five-step model to be applied to all
contracts with cuslomers), enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidance (e.c. the point at



which revenue is recognized, accounting for varizhle considerations, costs of fulfilling and obtaining
a contract, etc.).

The Company’s revenue mainly arises from interest income from cash in barks and share in net
income from an associate. Accordingly, the adoption of FFRS 15 has no sigmificant impact on the
financial statements of the Company.

¢ Amendments to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 — The
amendments provide clarifications on the following topics: (a) identifying performance obligations;
(b) principal versus agenl considerations; and (c) licensing. The amendments also provide some
transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

Amcndments to PAS 28, fmvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Measwring an Associale or
Joint Venture at Faiv Value — The amendments are parl of the Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-
2016 Cycle and clarify that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment
N an associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital orgamzation,
mutual find, unit trust or other qualifying entity, is available for cach investment m an associate or
joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the financial
statements. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes fo financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS Tssued But Not Vet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the vear ended December 31,2018 and
haye not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

» Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
— The amendments allow entities to measure particular prepayvable financial assets with negative
compensation al amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (instead of at
fair value through profit or loss) if a specified condition is met. It also clarifies the requirements in
PFRS 9, Financial Instrumenis for adjusting the amortized cost of & financial liahility when a

modification or exchange does not result in its derecognilion (28 opposed to adjusting the effective
interest rate).

* Amendments to PAS 28, fnvesiments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Long-term Interesty in
Associgtes and Joint Ventures — The amendments clarify that long-term interests in an associate or
joint venture thal, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment but 1o which the equity
method is not applied, are accounted for using PFRS 9, Financial Tnstruments.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is nof expected
to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Financial Asscts and Liabilities

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a fnancial Liability in the statements
of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument. In
the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derccogmition, as
applicable, is done using settlement date accounting.,

Initial Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, which
is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received (in case of a liability). The
initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those desipnated at fair value through profit and
loss (FVPL), includes {ransaction cost.
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"Dy 17 Difference. Where the transaction in a non-active market is difTerent from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 17 difference) in profit or loss. In cases where there
is no observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as the best estimate of fair
value and recognizes “Day 17 difference in profil or loss when the inputs become observable or when
the instrument is derecognized. For cach transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method
of recognizing the “Day 17 difference.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement Policies. The Company classifies its financial assets at
mitial recognition under the following categories: (2) financial assets at FVPL, (b) financial assets at
amortized cost and (c) financial assets at FVOCL Financial liahilities, on the other hand, are classified
as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial liabilities at amortized eost. The classification of a
finanecial instrument largely depends on the Company’s business model and its coniraciual cash flow
characteristics.

As al Scptember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company does not have financial assets and
liabilities at FVPL, and fnancial assets at FVOCT,

Financial Assets at Amortfized Cost. Financial asscls shall be messured a1 amortized cost i both of the
following conditions are met:

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows; and

= the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that ate solely
payments of principal and inferest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amoriized cost
usiig the effective interest method, less allowance for ECL, if any. Amortized cost is calenlated by
taking into accouni any discount or premium on acquisilion and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. (ains and losses arc recognized in profit or loss when the financial assets are
derecognized and through amortization process. Financial assets at amortized cost are included under
current assets if realizabilily or collectability is within 12 monihs after the reporting period. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assels,

As at Septemnber 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company’s cash in banks and due from related
parlics are classified under this category.

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are calegorized as financial labilites at
amorlized cost when the substance of the contractual armrangement results in the Company having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to setile the obligation other

than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed mumber of its own
equity instraments,

These financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, these financial liabilities are subsequenily measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on the issue and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Gains and losses arc
recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the amortization process.

As at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Company’s acerued expenses, due to a related
party and note payable are classified under this category.



Reclassification

The Company reclassifies its financial asscls when, and only when, it changes its business model for
managing those financial asscls. The reclassification is applied prospectively from the first day of the
first reporting period following the change in the business model (reclassification date).

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial asscls al amortized cost category to financial assets
at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the
financial asset and fair value is recognized in profit or loss.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amorized cost category 1o financial assets
at FVOCI, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previous amortized cost of the
financial asset and fair value 1s recognized in QCL

In the case of a financial asset that does not have a fixed maturity, the gain or loss shall be recognized in
profit or loss when the financial asset is sold or disposed. If the financial asset is subsequently impaired,
amy previous gain or loss that has been recognized in OCT is reclassified from equily to profit or loss.

Impairment Policy on Financial Assets at Amortized Cost

The Company records an allowance for ECL. ECL is based on the difference belween the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, The difference is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest
rale,

For financial instruments assets at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL, which
pertaing to the portion of lifetime ECL that resull from default events on a financial instrument {hat are
possible within 12 months after the reporling date. However, when there has heen a sigmificant increase
in credit risk since initial recogmition, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL. When
determining whether the credit risk of @ financial assct has incressed significantly since initial
recoguition, the Company compares the risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default oceurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and consider reasonable and supporlzble information, that is available without undue cost ar
etfort, that is indicative of significant increases in eredit risk since initial recomition.

Derceognition of Financial Assets and Liahilities

Financial Assets. A financial asset (or where applicable, & part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecogmzed when:

= the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired:

» the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the financial assel, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

* the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the financial assel and either (a) has
transferred  substantially  all the risks and rewards of the asssf, o1

(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from a financial asset or hes entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assel nor transferred control of the financial assel, the financial
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantec over the transferred fingncial asset is



measured al the lower of the original carrving amount of the financial asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original hability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the differcnce in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
in the statements of comprehensive income.

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new 1EIIS,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rale, 1s different
by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original Hahility.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on iis expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar tenns and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying value of the original liability and fair
value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference docs not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not

extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrving amount is adjusted by the costs ar fees
paid or received in the Testructuring.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Finanecial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultansously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related assets and
liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as liability il it provides for a contractual obl igation to:

e Deliver cash or another financial asset to another entlity;

* Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or

» Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash ar another financial asset
for & fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional rght to avoid delivering eash or another {inancial assct
to settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of & fnancial liability.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets include nput value-added tax (VAT), current portion of delerred inpul VAT,
creditable withholding tax (CWT) and prepayments.

VAT, Revenue. cxpenses and assets are recognized nel of the amount of VAT, except for receivables
and payables that arc stated with the amount of VAT included. The net amount of input VAT

recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of “Other current assets™ accounl in the salements
of finanecial position.

Deferred input VAT, In accordance with the Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 16-2005, input VAT on
purchases or imports of the Company of capital goods (depreciable assets for income tax purposes) with
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an aggregate acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the calendar month exceoding
1.0 milhon are claimed as credit against output VAT over 60 months or the estimated usefal lives of
capital zoods, whichever is shorter.

Delerred input VAT represents the unamortized amount of input VAT on capital goods. Deferred nput
VAT that are expected to be claimed against output VAT for no more than 12 months after the reporling
date are classified as curren! assets. Otherwise these are classified as noncurrent assets.

CWT. CWT are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWT can be
utilized as payment for income taxes provided that these arc properly supported by cerlificates of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine incomne taxation,

Prepayments. Prepayments represeni expenses paid in advance and recorded as ssscts hefore these are
utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to profit or
loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for no more than twelve months afier
the reporting date are classified as other current assets, Otherwise, these are classificd as other
noncurrent assets,

Investment in an Associate

Investmen! in an associate is recognized initially at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity
mithod,

An associate is an entily in which the Company has significant influence but nat control, over the
financial and operating policies of such entity. The Company’s sharc of its associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognized in profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movernents in Teserves is
recognized in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movements arc adjusted against the camying
value of the investment.

When the Company’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interesi in the aesociale,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. Unrealized gains on transactions
between the Company and ils associate are eliminated to the extent of the Company’s interest in the
associate.  Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

The Company determines at the end of each reporting vear whether there is any evidence that the
mvestment is impaired. 17 this is the case, the amount of impeairment is calculated as the difference
between the carrying value of the investment and recoverable amount.,

Property and Equipment

Property and equipmen! are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and sny impairment in value.
The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-
refimdable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebales and any direetly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.  The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, nay other costs directly attrbutable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing
the ilems and restoring the site on which they are localed.

Cxpenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, arc normally charged 1o operations in the vear the costs are incumed. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property and cquipment
beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expendilures are capitalized as additional
costs of properly and equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of property and
equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future ecopomic benefits embodied within the



component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrving value of the
rcplaced component is derecognized.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as
separate items {major components) of property and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straighl-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the
property and equipiment:

MNumber of Years
Condominium vt H
Office furniture and fixtures 3-5
Service vehicle 3

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed penodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected paliern of economic benefits from
items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related aceumnulated depreciation and
any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss is credited to or
charged against current operations.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

Nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the
carrying valuc of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the assel or cash-gencrating unit is written
down to its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value
less costs to scll and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted Lo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of moncy and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate larpely
indcpendent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit 1o which
the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recogmized in the statements of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made al cach reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists. the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount sinee the Tast
impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying value of the assef is increased to its
recoverable amount. That inercased amount camnot exceed the camying value that would have been
determined, net of depreciation. had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
After such a reversal, the depreciation charge is adjusted in fitture periods to allocate the asset’s revised
carrying value, less any residual value, on a systematic hasis over remaining useful life.

Equity

Capital stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly
atiributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equily, net of 1ax.

Retained earnings. Retained earnings represcent the cumulative halance of net meome or loss net of any
dividend declaration.

Other Comprehensive Income (OCH. OCI comprises of items of income and expense that are not

recognized in profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS. OCT of the Company pertains to share
in OCT of an associate.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when the performance oblipation in the contract
has been satisfied, either at a point in time or over time. Revenuc is recognized over time if one of the
following criteria is met: (a) the customer sitnultaneously receives and consumes the henefits as the
Company perform its obligations; (b) the Company’s performance creates or enhances an assct that the
customer controls as the asset is ereated or enhanced; or (c) the Company’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company has an enforceable night to payment
for performance completed to date, Otherwise, revenue is recognized al a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an
agent. The Company has assessed that it acts as a principal in all of its revenue sowrces,

The following specific recognition eriteria must also be met before revenue is recogmized:

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield om the asset.

Expenses Recognition
Expenses arc recognized in profit or loss when there is a decrease in future economic benefit related to
decrease in an assel or an increase in a liability that can be measured reliably.

General and administrative expenses. General and administrative expenscs constitule cost of
adminisiering the business. These are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Curreny Tax. Current tax assels and liabilities are measured at the amount expecled to he recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax mate used to compule the amount is the one that has
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date beiween the
tax bascs of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes,

Deferred tax liahilities are recognized for all taxahle temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences. carry-forward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) owver the regular corporate income tax
(RCIT) and any unused nel operating loss carryover (NOLCQ), Lo the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible lemporary differences and carry-forward
benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not recognized
when it arises from the inilial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a busincss

combination and, at the time of the transaction, afleets neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss,

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
delerred tax asset to be wtilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets arc reassessed at each reporting date

and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the period
when the assct is realized or the liability is setlled, based on tax rate that has been coacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except 1o the extent that it relates 1o a business combination,

or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assels against current 1ax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income {loss) for the vear atrbutable to
common shareholders by the weighted averapge mumber of common shares outstanding during the year,
with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and stock split and excluding common
shared purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares,

Diluted eamings (loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potential dilutive common shares,

Where the eamnings (loss) per share effect of potential dilutive common shares would be anti-dilutive,
basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share are stated at the same amount.

Operating Seoment

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and cxpenses that relate to the transactions
with any of the Company’s other components.

The Company has no operating segment other than being a holding company.

Related Party Relationship and Transactions

Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly, or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions,  Such relationships also exist between and/or among enlities which are under
common control with the reporting entity, or between, and/or among the reporting entity and its key
management personnel, directors or its stockholders. In considering each possible related party
relationship, attention is direcled to the substance of the relationship, and not merely 1o the lepal form.

Related parly transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company and its
related parties. regardless whether a price is charped.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable thal an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingencies
Contingenl liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes (o
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is

remote. Contingenl assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at the

end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements, Post year-end cvents
that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statemens v ‘hen material,
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w. Significant .u:mmﬂmwnm.. Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements. The judgment, estimates and assumptions used in the financial siatements are based o
management’s evaluation of relevant facts and circumsiances as at the reporting date.  While the
Company believes that the assumptions are reasonsble and appropriate, significant differences in the
actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may materally affect the estimated amounts.
Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The following are the significant judgments, accounting cstimates and assumptions made by the
Comparny:

Classifying Invesiment Property and Ohvwner-occupied FProperty. The Company considers a property as
an investment property when the property generates cash flows which are largely independent of other
assels held by the Company and a property as owner-occupied property when cash flows generated by it
pertains not only to the property but also to other assets used for operations or administralive purposcs.

A property may comprise of portions held for capital appreciation and portions used in operation or
administrative purpose. If these portions cannat be sold separatcly, the property is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in operation or for administrative
purpose.

The Company classified its condominium unit under property and equipment.

Determining Significant Influence over MARC. When an entity holds 20% or more of the voting power
(directly or through subsidiaries) on an investee, it will he presumed that the investor has sipnificant
influence unless it can be clearly demonstrated that this is not the case. If the holding is less than 20%;,
the entity will be presumed not to have significant influence unless such influence can be clearly
demonstrated, A substantial or majority ownership by another investor does not necessarily preclude an
entity from having significant influence.

The existence of sigmificant influence by an entity is usually evidenced in one or more of the following
WAy sl

* representation on the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the invesice;

* participation in the policy-making process, including participation in decisions about dividends or
other distributions;

¢ malerial transactions hetween the entity and the investee; interchange of managerial personncl: or

s provision of essential techmical information

The Company has determined that the decrease in owznership interest in MARC in 2018 resulting to a
less than 20% ownership interest would not affect its significant influence by virtug of the existence of
the above indicators in the Company’s dealings with MARC.

Assessing Modification on the Terms of the Note Payable. The Company considers its note payable to
be substantially modificd if the present valuc of the cash flows under the new temms, including net fees
paid or received and discounted using the original effective jnierest rate, is different by ai least 10%,
from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original liability, Such modification
will result to derecognition of original liability and the recognition of a new liability,

On the other hand, if the difference does mot mect the 109% threshold, the original debt is mot

cxtinguished but merely modified. Tn such case, the carrying value is adjusted by the costs or fees paid
or received in the restructuring,
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The Company assessed that there 1s no substantial modification on the terms of the note pavahle.

Determining Operating Segments. The Company delcrmines and presents opcrating segments based on
the information that is intemnally provided to the BOD. As at June 30, 2019 and December 31 L 2018, the
Company has delermined that it has no operating segment other than being a holding company.

Assessment of Impairment of Financial Assets at Amortized Cost. The Company determines the
allowance for ECL based on the probability-weighted estimate of the present valuc of all cash shortfalls
over the expected life of financial asscts at amortized cost. ECL are provided for credit losses that result
from possible default events within the next 12-months unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since inilial recognition in which case ECL are provided based on lifetime ECL.

When determining if there has been a sigmificant increase in eredit risk, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort and that is relevan
for the particular financial instrument being assessed such as, but not Hmited to, the following factors:

= actnal or expected external and internal credit rating downgrade:
»  existing or forecasted adverse changes in business, financial or econamic conditions; and
* actual or expected significant adverse changes in the operating results of the homower.

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are considered to have low credit risk, and therefore
the loss allowance is determined as 12 months ECL.. The Company has assessed that the ECL for other
financial assets at amortized cost is not material because the transactions with respect to these financial
assels were entered into by the Company only with reputable banks and counterparties with good credit
standing and relatively low risk of defaults. Accordingly, no imnpairment loss was recognized in 2019
and 2018,

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are as follaws:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Note {(Urnaudited) {Audited)
Cash in banks 4 B408,553 P253 845
Due from related parties 12 14,455,581 16,455,561

Assessment of Impairment of Investment in an Associate. The Company assesses the impairment of
investment in an associate whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of investment in an associate may not be recoverable. Factors that the Company considered in
deciding when Lo perform impairment review include the following, among others:

* significant decline in business and operating performance in relation (o expeclations; and
« significant changes in the business operations and strategies of the Company and its associate.

Based on management assessment, there are no indicators for impairment that will warrant impairment
assessment. ‘The management and its legal counsel believe that the order for the cancellation of
MMDC’s MPSA  will not have a matedal adverse effect on M MDC’s  operations
(see Nate 1). Accordingly, no impairment loss was recognized in 2019 and 2018, The carrying amount
of investment in associates amounted to £2,537.9 million and £2,563.4 million as at September 30, 2019
and December 31, 2018, respectively (see Note 7).

Assessing Impairment of Other Nonfinuncial Assets. The Company assesses impairmem on other
nonfinancial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
these assets may nol be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which could
trigger an impairment review include the following:

* significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;



» significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired asscts or the strategy for overall business;
and
» significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying value of an asset exceeds it
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value-in-use approach. Recoverable
amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the cash-penerating umit to which
the asset belongs. Determining such amount requires the estimation of cash flows expected 1o be
generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of such assets.

No impairment loss was recogmized in 2019 and 2018,

The carrying amount of the Company’s other nonfinancial assets are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

Nole {Unaudited) { Andited)
Other currenl assets 3 B0,408 550 B0.310,757
Property and equipment 6 41,684,903 43,138,202

Lstimating the Useful Lives of Property and Equipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and cquipment based on the perdod over which the assets are expected to be availablc for use,
The Company annually reviews the estimated useful lives of property and equipment based on factors
that include asset utilization. initemal techmical evalustion, technological changes, environmental
changes and anticipated use of the assets.

There is no change in the estimated uscful life of the Company’s property and equipment in 2019 and

2018. Carrying  value of property and equipment  amounted to  B41.7million  and
$43.1 million as at September 30, 2019 and December 31, 201 8, respectively (see Note 6).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tax Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying value to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to he utilized.

Deferred tax assets were not recognized on NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCTIT as at December 31,

2018 and 2017 because the management believes that there will be no sufficient taxable profits against
which deferred tax assets can be utilized.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax agsets amounted to 5.6 million and $7.8 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Cash

This acenuni consists of:

September 30,2019  December 31, 2018

{(Unaudited) (Andited)
Cash on hand P5,000 5,000
Cash in banks 405.553 253,845
_ P413,553 P258,845

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income earned amounted to
P442 and PET7 in 2019 and 2018, respeciively.



..mH (Hher Current Asscts

This account consists of:

September 30, 2019  December 31, 2018
(Unaundited) {Audited)
Input VAT PB.776,044 Pi.141414
CWT 600,683 600,685
Current portion of deferred input VAT - 474,999
Prepayments 100,685 74,523
Others o 21,136 ) 19,136
- 0,498,550 P0.310,757
¢. Property and Equipment
Balances and movements in this account are as follows:
September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)
Condomininm Office Fornitore
Mote Llnit and Fixiures Tuotal
Cost
Balance at beginning of perod F47,788,560 F1,795.019 P40,584,488
Additions = - _
Balance at end of perod 47,788,569 1.795.919 49,584,488
Accumulated Depreciation o
Ealance at beginning of period 5,772,153 674,133 6,446,286
Depreciation 11 1.184.356 268,943 1,453,299
Balance at end of petiod 6,956,509 943,076 7,809,585
Carrying Amount ) ] F40,832,060 ¥852,843 F41.684.903
December 31, 2018 (Audited)
Condominium  Office Furmiture
Note Lnit and Fixtures  Service Vehicle Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of vear 847,788 560 P1735.019 B 5686050 B51.092 838
Additions - &0,300 - 60,300
Disposals - —~ {1,568.650) (1,568 630)
Balance at end of year 47,788,569 1,795,915 - 46 584 458
Aceumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 4,193,012 324,600 1,481,503 5,490,514
Depreciation 11 1,570,141 340,134 87,147 2015422
Disposals = = (1.368.650) (1,568,650)
Balance at end of vear 5,772,153 a674.133 - 6,446 286
Carrying Amount B2.016.416 P1,121.7846 F- #43.138.202

On April 20, 2018, a fully-depreciated service vehicle was sold:

disposal of the asset was recognized.
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7. Investment in an Associate
Movements in this account are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Acquisition cosl P2,604.000,000 mam.mgh_memboln_r
Accumulated share in equity:
Balance at beginning of period (4(},555.504) 36,244,182
Share in:

Net loss {25.,517,253) (77,372,617)

Other comprehensive income — 572 841
Balance at end of period (66.072,847) (40,555,594)
Carrying amount P2,537,927153 P2 563,444 406

The Company has 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing  19.90% equily interest as at
Septernber 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (sce Note 1). MARC’s principal place of business is at
Unit E. One Luna Place, E. Luna St., Butuan City, Agrusan del Norte.

Summarized fnancial information of MARC follows:

September 30,2019 December 31, 2018

{(Unaudited) { Audited)
Total current asscts P1,050,130.416 B551,145,763
Total nomeurrent assets 5,261,282.220 5,278,237.211
Total current Habilities 1,743.568,583 1.140,620,272
Total noncurrent liakilitics 810,939,928 TOE.616,529
Revenue 737,148,665 OR7,255,064
Net loss 128,227,402 3RE,E07.119
Other comprehensive income - 2,873,596

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilitics

This aceount consists oft

September 30, 2019  Dccember 31, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)

Accrued expenses P207,681 F455,220
Statutory pavables 3,288 2,686
F210.969 B457,9006

Accrued expenses pertain io acereal of outside services, professional fees, and electricity, among others,
which are expected to be settled in the next reporting peried,

Statutory payables pertain to withholding taxes that are 1o he remitied to the government within the next
reporting period.
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9. Note Payable

Movements in this account are as follows:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) {Audited)
Balance at beginning of period P1,671,501,723 PLTI000,000
Assipnment of receivables (see Note 12) - (38,498,277}
Balance at end of pedod F1,671,501.723 P1.671,501.723

The noninterest-hearing note was assigned by PBB to Trans Middle East Philippines Equities, Inc.
(TMEE). This liability represents the unpaid portion of the purchase price of the investment in an
associate. The note’s original maturity date was December 31, 2015 but was extended. Latest extension

is until December 31, 2019,

1. Equity

On March 21, 1995, the SEC approved the listing of the Company’s 118,000,000 rmillion shares at an
offer price of P1.0 per share. As at September 3(), 2019 and December 31, 2018, 1,528 474 000 shares

are listed in the PSTE

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subscribed shares as al

September 30, 2019:

Mumber of shares

issued and Percentage of
subscribed shares
MNon-public shareholdings:
a. Related partics 1,170,159 989 76.56%,
b. Affiliates, directors and officers 94,929 000 6.21%
Public shareholdings 263 385,011 17.23%
Total 1,528,474, 000 100.00%

The total number of shareholders of the Company is 630 and 631 as at September 30, 2019 and

December 31, 2018, respectively.

The principal market for the Company’s cap
Company’s shares are as follows:

ital stock is the PSE. The high and low trading prices of the

Quarter High Low

January to September 2019

First Fl.608 F1.31

Second 1.38 1.14

Third 1.43 1.11

January to December 2018 )
First PLOR Pl.5s

Second 1.83 12y

Third 222 1.46

Fourth 1.86 128




11. General and Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

September 30,2019 September 30, 2018

Note {Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Depreciation ] ¥1,453,200 F1.531,846
Membership ducs and other fees 1.051,736 1,051,736
Professional fees 482,800 540,829
Qulside services 315,721 480,755
Communication, light and water 198,933 193,788
Director’s foes 20,000 10,000
Taxes and licenses 39426 73,507
Others 168,419 242,024
$1.730.334 P4,124 488

12.

Related Party Transactions

The Company has the following transactions with its Parent Company and other related parties:

Amownl of Tranzaciions

Otstonding Balenoes

HNature of Seplember 30, 2009 December 31, 20138
lransactions 2619 (Upaudited) 2018 [Andited) (U naudited) [Audiled)
Due from Helated Parties
Haren: Company -
EYM Advances Tor
warking caprital r— P 5 D D0 R 000,000
Linder comman contrad:
LSLSER Advances for
working capite! [ 2AMHD (kY 3455 551 6,455,581 BAT5,531
F14,455.561 Pl 455531
Diee 10 & Related Party
Ay -
Primc Media Holdings, lzo. Adwvances for
e working capital BREOG.03] 1,000,000 1566051 1,000,020

Dhue from related parties are noninterest
cash, Due to a related party is nonint

cash,

-bearing, collectible on demand, not impaired and o be setiled in
erest-bearing, unsecured, payable on demand and to be settled in

The Company assigmed the receivable from the Parent Company to TMEE to offset with the note
payable amounting to P38.5 million and $50.0 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (sec Note 9.

Compensation of Kev Manacement Fersonngl
Compensation of key management per
£0.05 million, #0.1 million in 2019, 2018

and 2017, respectively.

sonnel on short term employes benefits amounted to nil,



13.

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share

Basic and diluted loss per share is computed as follow:

September 30, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) {Andited)

Net loss . (F29,247,145) (P84.636,999)
Weighted average number of common shares

outstanding 1,528,474,000 1,528,474,000

Lozs per share - basic and diluted (F0.02) (P0.055)

There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential common shares that oceurred
subsequent to the reporting dates.

14.

Contingencics

Legal Claims and Assignment of Litization Cases

The Company is a co-defendant in a collection case for US$1.5 million filed in the Los Angeles
Superior Court by a foreign merchant and its Philippine affiliate in 2012, The plaintiffs have alleged
that they were not paid the charge cards availments that the Company processed under a Tripartite
Merchants Agreements (TMA). Based on Company’s records, however, payments duc to the foreign
merchant were wired to the latter’s designated agent. The Company did not breach any regulatory or
trade standards in complying with the TMA. The Company’s management and its counsel believe that
the case will mot give rise 1o or result in any lighility or damage on the part of the Corporalion since
(2) RCBC posted a bond in the amount of 17$$3.1 million, by way of security o stay the enforcement of
the Amended Judgment rendered by Judge Rafacl. In case of judgment against the Company, this bond
may cover the liability to the extent of USS$3.1 million; and (b} the Share Purchase Agreement dated 18
October 2013 between Rizal Commereial Banking Corporation, RCBC Capital Corporation {collectively
referred herein as the “Sellers”) and PBR Business Bank Inc.- Trust and Investment Center (the
“Buyer”) contains an indemnity clause from the Sellers in casc the Corporation or the Buyer Group is
adjudged liable,
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Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent the
Company from achieving its objectives, These policies are intended 10 manage risks identified in such a
way thal opportunitics to deliver the Company’s objectives are achieved. The Company’s risk
management takes place in the context of day-to-day operations and normal business processes such as
strategic planning and business planning, Management has identified each risk and is responsible for

coordinating and continuously improving risk stralcgies, processes and measures in accordance with the
Company’s established business objectives,

Yinaneial Risk Mapagement Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments consist of cash in banks, due from related parties,
accrued expenses, due 1o a related party and note payable. The primary purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Company’s operations.  The main risks arising from the use of these
financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. Management reviews and approves the policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarized below,
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Credit Risk

Credit misk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty
defaults on ils obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit nsk arjses primarily from cash in banks
and duc from related parties.

The Company’s maximum exposure to eredit risk on the financial assets as ar amortized cost is the
carrying amount of those assets as at the reporting date.

Financial Assets af Amortized Cost

The Company limits its credit risk from balances with banks by depositing its cash with highly reputable
and pre-approved financial institutions. For due from related parties, credit nisk is low since the
Company only transacts with related parties with strong capacily to meet its contraciual cash flow
obligations in the near term

As discussed in Note 3 1o the financial statements, the Company considers credit risk in measuring ECL
of financial assets at amortized cost. Since the financial assets at amortized cost of the Company are
considered to have low credit risk, impairment loss is limited to 12-month ECL.

The table below presents an analysis of the credit quality of the Company’s financial assets at amortized
cost.

September 30,2019  December 31, 2018

(Unandited) (Audited)
Cash in banks B408,553 P253.845
Due from related parties 14,455,551 16,455,581
P14.864,134 216,709,426

Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able o settle or meel its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to mee! zll
foresesable cash needs.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial lishilities st amorized cost
as at Sepiember 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018 based on contracmal undiscounted cash flows.

September 30, 2019 (Unaudited)

Less than One  One Month to More than
Month Oue Year Oue Year Total
Accrued expenses 207,681 [ -5 = P207,681
Due tor a related party - 1,866,031 - 1,866,031
Mote pavable - 1,671,501,723 - 1.671,501,723
P207,681  P1,673.367,754 P P1,673,575.435

Diecember 31, 2018 (Audited)

Less than One One Month 1o Maore than
Muonth Cme Year {Ine Year Total
Accrued cxpenses 455220 = el B45s 220
Due to & related party - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Wate payable 1.671,501,723 - 1.671,501,723
PASS220  PL6T2,501.723 - P1.672,956.943
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Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liahilities

Set oul below is a comparison by category of carrving values and fair values of the Company’s financial
instruments that are carried in the financial statements:

September 30, 2019 (Unaudited) December 31, 201% { Audited)

Carrying Yalue Fair Value Carrving Value Fair Value
Financial Assets at
Amortized Cost
Cash F413,553 413,553 B25R R4S PI55,845
Duae from related parties 14,455,581 14,455,581 16,455 581 16,455 581

B14.869,134 P14.869.134 BIA,714.426 P16,714.420

Financial Liabilitics at
Amortized Cost

Accrued expenses B207,681 207,681 P455.220 B455720
Due to a related party 1.866.031 1,866,031 1,000,000 1,000,000
Note payable 1,671,501,723  1,671,501,723  1,671.501,723  1,671,501,723

P1.673.575,435 $1,673,575,435 P1,672.956,043 P1,672,956943

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. The carrying amounts of cash, due from related parties,
accrued expenses, due to a related party and note payable approximate their fair values due to the short-
term nature of the transactions. The fair value measurement of curren! financial assets and liabilities ig
classified as Level 3 (significant unobservable inputs).

1.

Capital Management Objcctives, Policies and Procedures

The Company’s capital management objectives are fo ensure the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide an adequate return to shareholders. The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders or issuc new shares.

The Company considers its total equity amounting to B304 million and $959.6 million as at
September 30, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively, as its capital.

There has been no change in the objectives. policies and processes in 2019 and 201§,

S
L



Bright Kinde Fecources
—Rivestmens,

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Management of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc, is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, in accordance with
the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management i¢ responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability fo continue as a going concemn, disclosing. as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis 'of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or 10 cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so,

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

The Board of Directors reviews nnd approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members,

Reyes Tacandong & Co,, the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, has audited the financial statements oF the
company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit,

el

C. ZALAMEA

_ mMms of the Boar

ISIDRO C., ALCANTARA, JR.
President

¥ %

ROLANDO S, SANTOS

TSI APR 12 9010

Signed this day of




APR 29 2019

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of affiant(s)
exhibiting to their evidence of identity, as foliows:

NAMES Competent DATE OF ISSUE PLACE OF ISSUE
Evidence of
Identity (TIN)
Cesar C. Zalamea 137-712-551
Isidro C, Alcantara, Jr. 123-371-18%
Rolando S. Santos 127-551-054
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The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
16th Floor Citlbank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati Clty

‘Cpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc.
{the Company}, & subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statements of financal
position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and ‘the statement: of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and
notes to financial statements, including 2 summary of nm:_rnu:_“...._nnn::g:m policies,

In our opinien, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial _um.ma.ﬂamsnn gnd its cesh flows for the years
ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 in sccordance with Philippine Financlal Reporting Standards
(PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Fhilippine Standards on Auditing {PSA). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described In the Auditors’ Responsibilitles for the Audit of the Finarcial
Statements section of our report, We are Independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines {Code of Ethics) together with the ethical reguirements that
are relevant to the audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibllitles in accerdance with these regulremerts and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion.

‘Emphasis of Matter

We drew attention to Note 1 to the financial statements which discusses that Marcventures Mining and
Development Corporation {(MMDC), a subsidiary of the Company's assotiate, Marcventures Holdings, |nc.,
received an order from the Department of Environment and Natural Rescurces on February 13, 2017 but
dated February 8 2017 cancelling its Miners! Froduction Sharing Agreement No. DL15-33-% {FAP3A]
The management of the Company believes that the crder has no basis and the outceme of legal actions taken
will not have a materizl adverse effect on MMDC's operations, as described in Note 1 1o the financial
statements. MMEC has continued its mining operations in the areas covered by the BAPSA,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance in sur audit
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a wholz, and In forming our opinlon thereon, and we do not provide 3 separate

opinion on these matters.

- Delermination of Indicator of Impalrment of ocliate

The investment in an assoclate Is accounted for using the equity mathod In accordance with FAS 1E,
fnvestment in Associates and Joint Ventures. The Company is required to assess at each reporting dste
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment s imaaired. This matter is significant to our

audit because the Investment in assoclate represents 87% of the Company's total assets.

We performed the necessary procedures by verifying the historical accuracy of management's estimates
aleng with the latest estimate of recoverable reserves and evaluated whether a reasonably change in

sssumptions could cause the carrying amount to exceed the estimated recoverable zmounts.

Further disclosures are Included in Mole 3, Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates ond Assumptions and

Note 7, Investment in on Associate.

atfier information

Management |s responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-15 {Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A (Annual Report] and
Annual Report distributed to stockhalders for the year ended December 31, 2018, but does net Include the
financial statements and our Auditors’ report thereon, The SEC Form 20-1S . SEC Form 17-4 and Annual
Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2018 are expected to be made available

to us after the date of this fuditors” report.

Qur opinlon on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assurance conclusion therean.

In connection with our audits of the financial statements, cur responsibllity is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes avallable and, In-doing so, consider whether the sther infarmation |s
materially Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtsined in the audits or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

fesponsibifities af Monagement ond Those Charged with Governance for the Financic! Stotemeants

Management is responsible for the preparation snd fair presentation of the financiz! statements |n
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstate

In preparing the finangial staiements, management |5 responsible for
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o
operations, or has no reallstic alternative but to do s,
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Those chargec with governance are resporsible for oversesing the Company’s finantlsl reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiol Stotements

Our ohjectives are to obitain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ repott that
includes our opinicn. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not @ guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Mistaternents
can ariss from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually orin the aggregate, these could
reasonably be expected to influence the econsmic decisions of users taken bn the basis of these financial
statemenis.

As part of an audit in sccordanze with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionzl
skepticisim throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain audit evidence that s
sufficlent and appropriate 1o provids a basis for our epinlon. - The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting frem fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 35 fraud may invelve
colluslen, farpary, intentinnal omissians, misrepresentations, or the override of Internal contral,

* Obtaln anunderstanding of internal cortrol relevant to the audit in order to design sudlt procedures that
are appropriate In the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal contral,

* -Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by maragament,

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the golng concarn basks of accounting and,
bzsed on the audit evidence obtained, whetker 3 material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast eignificant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a5 a going toncern. 1f we
tonclude that a material uncertainty exlsts, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the financlal statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, to miadify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 3 going
COncern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, Including the
disclesures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
marnner that achisves falr presantation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned seape
and timing of the audit and significant sudit findings, Including any significant deficlencies In Internat control
that we identify during the audit.
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We alzo provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financis! statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulstion preciudes
public disciosure about the matter or when, In extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of dolng so would reasenably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

ReYEs TACANDONG & CO.

i

Oakaliad X

CAROLINA P. ANGELES

Partner

CPA Certificate No. $6981

Tax lderitification No. 205-067-876-000

BOA Accreditstion No, 2782; Yalld until August 15, 2021

SEC Accreditation No. 0ES8-AR-3 Group 4
validuntil May 17, 2020

EIR Accredication Mo, DE-005144.007-2017
alidunti]l January 13, 2020

PTR Mo, 7334336
lssued January 3, 2018, Maksti City

April 12,2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, IN., .~ ‘7" , lu
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.) Hha_d_ APR 3 ¢ Em @
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December 3l
Note 2018 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 P258,845 B510,059
Due from related parties 13 16,455,561 58,717,477
Other current assets 5 8,310,757 8,803,846
- Tetal Current Assets 26,025,183 68,131,382
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment ] 43,138,202 45.083,324
Investment In anassociate 7 2,563,443,406 2,640,244,182
Deferred Input YAT - nzt of current portion - 474 999
Total Noncurrent Assets . 2,606,582,60B 2,685,812,505

E2,632,607,791 2,753,943 887

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabllities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilitles 8 R457 906 B231,567
Due to a related party 13 1,000,000 o
Note pavable o 1,671,501,723  1,710,000.000
Total Current Liabilities 1,672,959,620  1,710,231,567
Equity
Capital stock 840,660,700 840,660,700
Retained earnings 111,641,092 156,278,091
Other comprehensive income 7,345,370 6,773,529
Total Equity 959,648,162  1,043712,320

P2,632,607,791  £2,752,943 887

See peeompanying Notes to Fingneicl Stoterpents,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

MNote 2018 2017 2016
GE Emmb._. AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES 11 [R7,265,480) (P6,880,122) (P4,542,767)
SHARE IN NET INCOME {LDSS) DF AN
ASSOCIATE 7 (77,372,617} 15,574,452 1,693,703
ANTEREST INCOME 4 1,098 147,973 uh.._u..,___._.uﬁ..
ANCOME {LOSS) BEFORE TAX {84,636,900) 8,842,283 {2,715,634)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 1z - = b=
NET INCOME {LOSS) (84,635,335) 8,842,283 {2,715,634)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ot to be reclossified to grofit or joss -
Share In cther comprehensive income
of anassoclate 7 572,841 4,363,778 1,019,330
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{LO5S) {R84,064,158) F13,212,081 {B1,696,304)
‘EARNINGS {LOSS| PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED 14 {RD.055) F0.008 {RD.00Z)
See accompanying Notes to Financial Staterments.
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(# Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

Note 2018 2017 2015
CAPITAL STOCK - B0.55 par value 10
Authorized - 2,000,000,000 shares
lssued, subscribed and outstanding -
1,528,474,000 shares F840,660,700  #B4D,660,700  #840,650,700
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at _umm_ﬂ_aa.m of year 196,278,001 187,435,808 180,151,842
INet income (loss} [84,636,999) B,842,283 12,715,634
Balance at end of year 111,641,092 196,278,091 187,435,808
OTHER COMFPREHENSIVE Enﬂ_ﬁm.
ot to be reciassfied to profit or foss
Share in other comprehensive income
of an associste: T
Balance at beginning of year 6,773,529 2,403,751 1,334,921
Remeasurement gain 572841 4,360 778 1,018.330
Balance at end of vear 7,346,370 B,773,529 2,403,751
P555,648,162 #1,043,712,320 21,03 0,500,259

Lee accompanying Notes te Finorga! Stelements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTM ENTS, INC.
{A Subsldiary of RVM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2018 2017 2016

CASH FLDWS FRONM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (less) before tax (R84,636,999] 8842283 (R2,715,634)
Adjustments for:

Share in net loss {income) of an associate 77,372,617  (15,574.432) {1,892,703)

Depreciation 2,015422 2,291,043 1,661,267

Interest Income {1,098) {147,573} {240,430}
Operating loss before working capital changes {5,250,058) (4,589,079 {2;968,500)
Decrease {increase} in: : .

Due from related partles 3,763,619 [8,606,637) {32,848063)

Other assets {31,912) {887,418) {1,700,134)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 226,339 2,033 {101,394)

Due to related party 1,000,000 - -
Net cash used inoperations {292,012) (14081101 {37,639,091)
Interest recelved 1,098 147,873 240,430

Net cash used inoperating activities

(200,914)  [13,933,128] (37,398,661)

CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisitions of property and equipment

(60,300}  (4,072,804) {10,425,257)

CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Payment ¢f note payable

~__ {80,000,000] {200,000,060)

DECREASE IN CASH

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

{351,214} (108,005,732} (247,823,918

610,059 108,615,791 356,438,700

CASH AT END OF YEAR F258,845 #610,052 F108,615,791
NONCASH FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Assignment of receivables to offset with

note payable R38,488,277 kS 0,000,000 -

JeE grcompamying Notes to Finenciol Srotements,
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

General Infermation

Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc., {the Company}, formerly Bankard, Inc. was Incorporated
and registered with the Philippine mmno_.#_mm. and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Detember 4, 1981
&s a credit card nﬂ.ﬁnﬁ.ﬁ._r? On March 21, 1885, the Company listed its shares with The Philippine
Stock Exchange, Inc. {PSE).

On October 18, 2013, the Board of Directors (BOD) of Rizal Comimercial Banking Corporation (RCBC)
approved the cale of Its 89,98% collective stake inthe Company to AYM Business Management Cerp.
{the Parent Company} and other Investors. The Parent Com pany actuired 76.56% interest in the
Company.

In November 2013, the BOD approved the amendment to change the corporate name to Bright
Kindie Resources & Investments, Inc. and primary business purpose to 2 holding company.

The Company’s principsl office address is at 16th Floor Citlbank Tower, B741 Pasec de Roxas, Mskatl
City.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and for
the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were approved and authorized for issuance by
the BOD on April 12, 2015,

Investment in Mareventures Holdings, Inc.
On December 15, 2014, the Company acguired 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing 33%
equity Interest for #2,604.0 million from the Philippine Business Bank - Trust and Investment Center
{PEE) [see Note 7).

On December 23, 2017, the SEC approved the application of the merger of MARC, Brightgreen
Resources Holdings |nc. (BB} and Asiz Pilot Mining Phils. Corp. [APMPC), with MARC as the surviving
entity. MARC issued 1,125,000,000 shares to BHI and APMPC resulting to a reduction of the
Company's equity Interest in MARC to 20%. |n 2018, MARC lssued 45,731,706 shares at£1.64
shares or a total of 875 millionto 3 ma|or stockholder resulting to a reduction of the Company's
equity interest in MARC to 19.90%.

On February 13, 2017, Marcventures Mining and Development Corporation {MMDC), a subsidiary of
MARC, received an order dated February 8, 2017 from the Lepartment of Environment and Natural
Resources cancelling its Mineral Production Sharing Agreement {MPSA}, The management and its
legal counsel believe that the order has no basis and the outcome of legal actions taken will not
have a material adverse effect on the MMDC's operations.

MMDC's management will take all the necessary legs| m___..,._”_nﬂ@w@nﬂwﬁﬁmr%mﬁ@wﬂw_ﬁﬁr_m 10
fits dagal coue :

prevent the implementation of the order. The managemani o £gal counsel helieve that, the
order has no basis and the outcome of legal actions takend will be[FTaver 5T he ompany. MMDC
has continued fts mining operations In the areas covered by fha tAlsA, APR 30 2018

On February 22, 2017, MMDC has filed Notlce of Appesl tothe ﬁmﬂnﬂm_ﬂﬂwmmn 2 Ul DY )




2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS). This financial reporting framework includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting
Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations of issuances by the international Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee, issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council and adapted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesp, which is also the Company’s functicnsl
and presentation currency. All values represent absolute amounts except otherwise stated,

The flnancizl statements have been prepered Lsing the ._.,__m_.u:_nm_ tost basis. Historical cost is
genearaly based on thefalr value of the consideration given in exchange for an esset and fair value of
the consideration recelved in exchange for incurring a liability.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction. between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valuation tachnigues that are appropriate In the clicumstances and for which sufficient dale are
avzilable to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inauts and minimizing the
use of unobservable inputs.

The Company uses market ohservable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
asset or a liability. Fair valves are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
inputs used In the valuation techniques as foliows:

¢ level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical aseats or Habilities,

® level 2 - Valuation'technlgues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valus
measurement is directly or Indirectly observable,

* Level 3 -Valustion technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fir value
‘measgrement is unobsanvable.

For assets and liabliities that are recognized in the financial statement: on 3 recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels In the nlerarchy by
re-assessing categerization {based on the lowest level Input that is significant to the fair value
measurement s 3 whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosuras, the Company has determinet classes of assets and
liabllities on the basis of the nature, tharacteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level| of
the fair value hierarchy 25 explained above.

Further infermation about the assumptions mads in measuring falr value is included in Note 18,
Financiol Risk Maonogement Objectives gnd Poficies.



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS . .
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for

the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adopted effective for
annuzl pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

* PFRS 9, Financiol fastruments — This standarc replaces PAS 39, Fingncial Instruments:
Recognition wnd Meosurement (and all the previous versions of PFRSS). It provides
requirements for the dassification and measurement of financial assets and lizbilities,
Impairment, hedge accounting, recognition, and derecognition.

PFRS 3 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized tostor
fair value {through profit or |oss or through other tomprehensive .w_.__.muam.v depending on their
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

For financial lizbilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to casas where the fair valus
option is taken: the amount af change in fair vaiue of 2 financial liability designated s at fair
value through profit or loss that is attributable 1o changes In the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income {rather than In profit or loss), unless this creates an
atcounting mismatch.

For the impairment of financial assats; PFRS 9 introduces an “expected oredit loss” {ECL) mode!
based on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract; recognition ef
a credit icss should no longer wait for there to be an objective evidence of impairment.

For hedge accounting, PERS 5 introduces a substantial overhaul m__aé_:m.mnﬁ.im_ statements to
petter reflect how risk management activities are undertzken when tedging financial and
non-financial risk exposures,

The derecognition provisions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,

Based or the Compzny's amalysis of its business model and the contractua! cash flow
characteristics of its financlal assets and liabilities as at January 1, 2018, the Company has
concluded that all of its financlal assets and liabllities shall continue to be measured on the same
basis as under PAS 33 but shall be classified under PFRS 9. The Company has adopted PFRS 9
retrospectively.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables under PAS 3¢ are classified 35 financial assets
4t amortized cost undsr PFRS 9. These financlal assets include cash in banks and due from
related parties. Accordingly, there were no changes in the carrying amount of the financial
assets Upen adoption of PFRS 9.

The Company assessed that the adoption of PFRS 8, specifically on determining impa rment loss
using general approach, has ne impact on the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial
-assels carried at amortized cost.

There Is no material impact on the basic ard diluted earnings per share as a result of the
Lompany's adoption of PFRS 9.
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» PFRS 15, Revenue from Controct with Customers — The new standard replaced PAS 11,
Construction Controcts, PAS 18, Revenve and related Interpretations. It establishes a single
comprehensive framework for revenue rzcognition to apply consistently across transactions,
industries and capital markets, with a core prirciple (based or 2 five-step model to be applied to
all contracts with customers], enhanced disclosures, and new or improved guidsnce (e.g. the
point at which revenue is recognized, accounting for variable considerations, costs of fulfilling
and obtaining = contract, etc.).

The Company’s revenue mainly erises frem interest income from cash in banks and shara in net
income from an associate. Accordingly, the adaption of PFRS 15 has no significant impacs on the
financial statements of the Company

* Amendments to PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers - Clarification to PFRS 15 —The
amendments provide clarificsticns on the following topics: (a) identifying performance
obligatlons; (b} principal versus agent considerations; and {t] licensing. The emendments also
provide some transition reliefl far modified contracts and completed contracts.

or Joint Venture at Foir Value - The amendments are part of the Annual Improvements te PFRS
2074-2016 .nﬁ_m and n_m:E that the election to measure 8t fair value through profit or loss @n
imeastment in an associate or a joint venture that js held by an entity that is 3 venture capital
organization; mutual fund, unit trust orother-qualifylng entity, is available for each investmant
in ari associate or joint venture pn an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recoghition.

+ Amendments to PAS 28, investments in Assoclotes and Joint Ventures - Measuring on Associate

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect on the
financial statements. Additional disclosures have been incluged inthe notes to financial staterments,
as applicable,

New and Amended PFRS Issued But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2018
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on orafter January 1, 2019:

¢  Amendments to PFRS 8, Fingnciol instruments - Prepayment Features with WNegaotive
Compensation — The ameandments allow entities to measure particular prepayable financial
assets with nesgative compensation ot amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive Income (instead of at fair value through profit or lass) if a specified condition is
met, It also clarifies the requirements in PFRS S, Finoacial Instruments for adjusting the
amortized cost of a finandal liability when a modification or exchangs does not result in its
derecognltion {as opposed te adjusting the effective interest ratel.

¢« Amendments to PAS 28, Investments jn Associates and Jaint Ventures - Long-term interests in
Associates ond Joint Yentures — The smendments clarify that ._o:m-ﬂm:.: interests in an associate
or joint venture that, in substance, form pant of the entity’s riet investment but to which the
£quity method is not applied, are accounted for using PFRS 8, Fingrcial Instrurneats,

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected to have any material effect on the finandial statemeants of the Company.



Financlzl Assets and Liahilities

Cate of Recognition. The Company recognizes & financial asset of a finandial lizbility in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provizsions of = financial
Instrument. In the case of # regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable, Is done using settlament date accounting.

Initin! Recognition ond Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at falr valug,
which is the fair value of the consideration Biven [in case of an asset) or received (in case of a
liability). The initial measurement of financial instryments, except for these designated at fair vaiue
through profit and loss [FVPL), includes transaction cost,

“Day 1" Difference. Where the transaction In a non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation
technique whose variables nclude only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value fa “Day 1" difference) in profit orfoss, In
cases where there is ro observable data on inception, the Company deems the transaction price as
the bast estimate of fair value and recognizes “Day 1" difference in profit or lass when the inputs
become observable or when the Instrument is derecognized. For gach transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement Policies, The Company classifies its financial assets at
initial recognition under the following categories: {a} financial assats at FVPL, {b} financial assets at
amortized cost and {c} financial assets at FVoQ. Finarcial lizbilities, on the other hand, are classified
as either financial liabilities at FVPL or financial lisbilities at emortized cost. The classification of &
tirandal instrument largely depends on the Company’s business mode! and its contractual cash fiow
characteristics,

As at Decembar .m.r 2018 and 2017, the Company does not have financial assets and liabilities at
FVFL, and financial 2ssets at FYoCs

Financial Assets ot Amaortized Cost. Financizl assets shall be measured a1 amortized cost # bath of
the following conditions are mes:

= the financial asset is held within & business medel whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows: and

* the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise, on spacified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and Interest an the principzl amount Quistanding.

After initisl recognition, financial assels al amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest methad, less allowance fer ECL, if any. Amortized cost i colzulated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or focs when the financial assets
are deracognized and through amortizaticn process, Flnandial assets at amertized cost are includsd
under current assets If realizability or tollectability is within 12 months after the reporting pericd.
Dtherwise, these are classified a5 nancurrent assets,

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Compeny's cash in banks and due from related parties are
tizssified under this catepory.



finaricial Liabilities at Amortized Cost. Finandal liabilities are categorized as financial fizbilities 2t
amortized cost when the substance of the contractual arrengement results In the Company having
an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial zsset to the holder, or to settle the
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for 2 fixed
number of its own equity instrumerits.

These finandal Habilities are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transzction
costs, After [nitial recognition, these financia! |iabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is caloulated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and feas that are an Integral part of the effective Interest rate,
Gains and Iosses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized or through the
amortization process.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company's accrued expenses; due to 3 relsted party and
note payable are classified under this category.

Reclassification

The Company reclassifies its financial assats when, and only when, it changes its business modal for
managing those financial assets. The ﬁanﬂmw.m_.nm:n.._ is applied prospectively from the first day of
the first reperting period following the change in the business model {reclass!fication date),

For & financial asset reclassified out of the financial assets at amortized cost category to financial
assels at FVPL, any gain or loss arising from the difference between the previpus amortized cost of
the finanicial asset and fair value is racognized in profit oricss.

For a financial asset reclassified out 6f the financial astets at amortized cost eategory to financial
2ssets at FVOC, any gain or 1oss arising from the differance between the previpus amoertized cost of
the financlal asset and fair value s recogrized in OCL

In the case of & financial asset that does not bave a fixed maturity, the gzin or loss shall be
recognized in profit or doss when the financial atset s sold or disposed. If the financial asset js
subsequently impaired, any previous gain or loss thet has been recognized in DC s reclzssified from
equity to profit orloss,

impairment Policy on Financial Asscts at Amertized Cost

The Company records an allowance for ECL, ECL s based on the difference between the cantractual
cash fiows due in accerdance with the contract and sl the cash flows that the Company expects o
receive. The difference Is then discounted at an approximation to the asset's origina! effective
interest rate.

For financial Instruments assets at amortized cost, the ECL is based on the 12-month ECL, which
pertains to the portion of {ifetime ECL that result from default events on a financiz!l Instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initizl recognition, the zllowance will be based on the ifetime ECL, When
determining whether the cradt risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since Iritial
recognition, the Company compares the rlsk of 2 defauh peeurring on the financial instrumant g5 st
the reporting date with the risk of a defuft occurring on the financial Instrument as at the date of
initial reccgnition and consider reasonable and suppertable information, that is avallahle without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk sinca initial recognition.



Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financiol Assets, A financisl asset {or where applicable, a part of & financial asset or part of 8 group
of similar financial assets) is terecognlzed whan:

e theright to receive cash flows from the asset has expired:

» the Company retains the right to recelve cash flows from the financlal asset, but has assumed an
ohiigatien to pay them in full without material defay te a third party under a "pass-through”
arrangement; of

» the Company has transferrad its right to receive cash fiows from the finandial asset and either
{8) has transferred substantially all the rlsks and rewards of the asset, or
{b} has neither transferred nor ratained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, bt
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right tc receive cash flows from a finarcizl 2sset or has
enterad into a pass-through arrengement, and has neither transferred nor retaines substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset nor transferred contrc| of the fi nancial
asset, the :_._w:n_m_ asset is recognized to the extznt of the _,.H_._.Em:,_xm continuing involvement jn the
financial asset. Cortinuing Involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred
financial asset is measurad at the lower of the original carrying amount of the financial asset and the
mzximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financla! liability is- -derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, tancelled or has expired. When an existing financlal liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are
mcvﬁmﬂ_m:., maodified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new hability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts s recognized in the staterments of comprehensive income,

A modification is consldered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new ._.m_.sy
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the orlginal effective interest rate,
differant F_. at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the n:mEm_
liability.

The fair value of the modified financlal lability Is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similzr terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carvying value of the orlginal liability and fair
value of the new liability is recopnized in the statements of ccmprehensive income.

On the ether hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is m_&__.__ﬂmn_ by the costs or fees
pald or received in the ﬂmac.an_._:w

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and financial fiabilities are offset and the nel amount reported in the statements of
financial position if, and enly if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recegnized
amounts and there is Intention to settleona net basis, or to realize the assat and settle the liability
simultaneously. This is not mmq.m;:,__, the case with master netting agreements, and the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.



Classification of Financial Instrument between Liability and Equity
A financial instrumant is classiled as liabllity if it provides far 2 contractus| obligation to:

¢ Deliver cash or anothet financial asset to another entity;

=  FExchange financial assets or financial labilities with znother entity under condltions that are
potentizlly unfavorable to the Company; or

= Satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of 2 fixed amaunt of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditlonal right to aveid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settle iis contractuzl obligation, the obligation meets the definition of & financial ligbility.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets include input value-added tax [VAT], current portion of deferred input VAT,
craditable withholding tax (CWT}and prepayments.

VAT. Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized nzt of the amount of VAT, except for recejvables
and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT includec. The ne: amoumnt of ‘inpur WAT
recoverable from the tax autherity is included as part of “Dther current assets” account in the
statements of financizl position.

Deferred input VAT, in atcordance with the Revenue Regulations [RR} No, 16 2005, input VAT on
purchases of imports of the Company of capital goods {depreciable assats for income tax purposes)
with 3n aggregate acquisition cost (exclusive of VAT) in each of the calendar month exceeding
#1.0 million are claimed as credit against output VAT over 60 months or the estimated useful lives of
capital goods, whichever is shorter.

Deferred input VAT represents the unamortized amount of input VAT on capital goods. Deferred
input VAT that are expected to be daimed against output VAT for na more than 12 months after the
reporting date are classified as current assets, Otherwise these are classified as noncurrent assets,

CWT. CWT are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWT can be
utilized as payment for income tases provided that these are properly supported by certificates of
creditable tax withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation,

Frepayments. Prepayments represent expenses paid in advance and recorded as assets before
these zre utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and
charged to profit or loss when Incurred. Prepaymerts that zre expected to be realized for no more
than twelve months after the reporting date are classified as other current assets, Otherwise, these
are classified ac other noncurrent assets,

Investment in an assoclate ic recognized initially at cost and subsequently accounted for using the
equity method.
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An-associate Is an entity In which the Company has significant influence but not control, over the
finencial and op=rating policies of such entity. The Company's share of its associate’s
post-acquisition profits or losses |s recognized in profit o loss, and its share of post-acquisition
rmovements in reserves ls recognized in equity. The cumulative post-acquisition movaments are
adjusted against the carrying value of the investment.

When the Company's share of 05223 In an assacate equals or exceeds its interest in the assotiate,
including any other unsecured recelvables, the Company does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred ‘obligations or made payments on behall of the assoclate. Unreslized geins on
transactions between the Compary and its associate zre eliminated to the extent of the Company's
interest in the assodiate, Unrealized losses are 2lso eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Lompany determines at the end of each reporting vear whather there s any evidence that the
investment is Impalred. 1§ thisis the case, the emount of impairment is cakculated as the difference
between the carrying value of the investtnent and recoverable amount.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulatad deprecistion and any imaairment In
value. The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including Import
duties, nonsrefundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts anhd rebates and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materizls and direct Iaber, nay other costs
directly attributable to bringing the a3s5els ko a working condition for their Intended use, the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located.

Expenditures incurred after the Pproperty and equipment have besn put into operation; such as
repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the yesr the costs
are incurred. In situations where it cen be tlearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resultad
in an increase in the future economic bensfits expected 1o be obtained from the use of an itam of
preperty and equipment beyond Its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of property znd equipment. The cost of replacing 3 component of
an item of property and equipment is fecognized if it is probable that the future economic berefits
embodied within the component will flow to the Company, and Its cost can be measured relizbly,
The cartying value of the replaced companent = derecognized.

When parts of an item of property and equipment have different usefyl lives, they are accountad for
asseparate items (major compenants) of property and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis gver the following estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment;

Number of Years
Condominium unlt 31
Oflice furniture and fistures 3-5

Service vehicle 3



-10-

The estimated useful lives and method for depredation are reviewed periodically to ensure that ._q._.__.m
petiods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from items of property and equipment.

When assets are .ﬁmwmn or otherwise disposed of, the cost znd the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment In value are removed from the accounts. Any resufting galn or loss
is cradited toor charged against current opatations,

sirment of Nonfinancial Assets

Nonfinancial assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an az:et may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and
where the carrying value of an asset exceeds Its recoverable amount, the asset or cash-generating
ynitis written down to its recoverable amount. The estimated recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
markel assessments of time value of money and the risks sperific to the asset. For an asset that
daes not generate lergely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-genirating unit to which the asset belongs.  Impairment losses are recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.

An assessment Is made at each reporting date as te whather theré is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased i such indication exists,
the recoverable amount s estimated. A previoushy _.mnn.w:__mmn impairment loss is revarsed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 3sset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. i that is the case, the carrying value of the asset i=
increased te its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying value that
would have been determined, net of depraciztion, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
assel in prior years. After such 3 reversal, the depreciztion tharge |s adjusted in future periods to
allocate the asset's revised carrying value, less any residuzl value, on a systematic basis over
remaining useful life.

Equit

Copital stock. Capltal stock is measured =t par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the iszuance of new shares are treated as deduction from equity, nat of tax,

Retained earnings. Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of ne: Inceme or loss net of
any gividend declaration.

Other Comprehensive Income {OC1). OC! comprises of items of income and expense that are not
recognized In profit or loss for the year in sccordance with PFRS. OC! of the Company pertains to
share In OC! of 2n associate,
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Revenue Recognition

‘Revenue from contract with customers is recogrized when the performance obligation in the
contract has been satisfied, either gt 3 pointin time or over time. Revenus is recognized aver time if
one of the following criteria is miet: {a) the customer simultangeously receives and consumes the
benefits as the Company perform its cobligstions; (b} the Company’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is crested or enhanced; or {c] the
Company's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the fompany and the
Company has an enforceable fight to payment for parformance completed to date. Otherwise,
revenue is recognized at a point in time.

The Company also assesses its revenue arrangements to determine if it is acting a5 a principal or as
an agent, The Company has asséssed that it acts as 2 principal in all of its revenue sources.

The following specific recognition criteria must alse be met before revenus is recognized;

Interest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yleld on the asset:

Expenses Recognition
Expenses are recognized in profit of loss when there is & decrease in future economic bencfit related
to adecrease inan asset oranincrease ina lizbllity that can be measured reliably.

Generol -and odministrative expenses. Genizral and acdministrative expenses constitite cost of
administering the business, These are expansad as incurred.

Income Taxes

Current Tex, Current tax assets and liabilities are measured 3t the amount expected to be recoversd
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount is the cne that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Dezferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between
the tax hases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Daferred tax liabitities are recognized far all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax sssets are
recognized for 2l deductible temporary differences, carry-forward bensfits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate Income tax (MCIT) over the regular torporate income tax
(RCIT) and any unused net operating ioss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available sgainst which the deductible temperary differences and
cerry-forward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however,
Is not recognized when it arises from the initlal recognition of an asset or liabillty In 5 transaction
that is nct a business combination and, 2t the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviswed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is ro longer probzble that sufficient taxabie profit will be available Lo allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognizad ceferrad tax assets are reassessed at ezch
reporting date and are recognited to the extert that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected w spply to the
perind when the asset is realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rate thzt has been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss excent to the extert that it relates to g business
combination, or terns directly recognized in eguity as other comprehensive income,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 1o offset current tax
assets against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes refate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Basic and Diluted Earni
Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income {loss} for the yzer attributable to
common shargholders by the weighted average humber of comman shares cutstanding durihg the
year, with retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared and stock split and excluding
common shared purchased by the Company and held as {reasury shares.

Diluted earnings {loss) per share is calculated by atjusting the weighted average number of commaon
shares outstanding to assume conversion of 2ll petential dilutive common shares,

Where the earnings (loss) per share effect of potential dilutive common shares would be
anti-dilutive, basic and diluted earnings {loss) per share are stated 2f the same smount.

Operating Segment

An cperating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and Incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s cther components,

The Company has no pperating segment other than being a holding company.

Related Party Relationship and Transactions
Relaled party relationship exists when one party has the ability to contrel, directly, er Indirectly

through one or more intermediaries, or exercise significant Influence over the other party in making

w_:m:n.wm_m:ununmﬂ_:mnmn.ﬁwﬂ:m_ .mcnw.«m_mma:m:.ﬂum_uumﬁwﬂwuﬂ&mm:m.,_a_,.aﬂ BmMong entities
which are under common contrad with the reporling entity, or between, and/or man:m.%m
reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or its stockholdars, In considering
each possible related party relationship, attention [s directed to the substance of the relationship,

and niot merely to the legal form.

Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Company
and is related parties, regardless whether a price ds charged.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of 8 past event, It is probable that an cutfiow of resources embotying economic benefits will
be required 1o settle the obiigation, and a rellable estimate c3n bz made of the amount of the
ohligation.
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Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized In the financial statements. They are disclosed ir the notes

to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying Economic
benefits s remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the finandal statements byt zre
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Post yesr-end events that provide additional nformation about the Company's financial position at
the end of reporting period {adjusting events! are reflected in the finandial statemients. Post
year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed In the notes to financial statements when
materizl.

Significant Judgments, Accounting Estimates and Assumplions

The ‘preparation of the Company's financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the financlal statements. The _.._.ﬁmam.:r estimates and assumptions used in the financial statements
are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting
date. Whila the Company believes that the assumations ars reasonzble and apgropriate, significant
differences In the actual eXperience or significant changes In the assumptions may materially affect
the estimated amounts. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

The following are the significant Jucgments, accounting estimates and assumptions made by the
Company:

Classifying Investment Progerty ond Owner-occupied Property. The Company consiclers a property as
an investment property when the property gsherates cach flows which are largely independent of
other assets held by the Company and 2 property as owner-occupied property when cash flows
generated by it pertains not only 1o the property but also to other assets used for operations or
administrative purposes.

A property may camprise of portions held for capital appreciation and pertions used in operation o
esdministrative purpose. If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accountad for as
an investment property enly i an nsighificant portion is held for use in vperation or for

-adrninistrative purpose,

The Company classified its condominium unit under property and equipment.

Determining Significant influence over MARC. When zn entity holds 20% or more of the voting
power {directly or through subsidiaries) on an investes, 1t will ba presumed that the investor has
significant influence uniess it can be clearly demanstrated that this is not the case, i the holding is
less than 20%, the entity will be presumad not to have significant influence unless such influence
can be clearly demonstrated. A substantial or majority ownership by another investor does not
nacesserily preciude an entity from having significant influence,



The existence of significant influence by an entity is usually evidenced in one or mare of the
Tollowing ways;

» representation on the board of direciors or eguivaient geverning body of the investes;

* participation in the policy-making process, including participation In decisions ahout dividends
or other distributions:

* material transactions between the entity end the investee; Interchange of managerial
personnel; or

e provision of essential technical information

The Company has determined that the decrease in cwnership interest in MARC in 2018 resuiting to
3 less than 20% ownership interest would not affect its significant influence by virtue of the
existence of the above indicators in the Company's dezlings with MARC.

Assessing Madification on the Terms of the Note Payable, The Company considers its note payable
to be substantially modified if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including
net fees paid or received and discounted using the ariginal effective interest rate, Is different by at
least 10% from the discounted present valle of remaining cash flows of the ariginal liability. Such
modification will result to derecognition of original lability and the recognition of 3 new Hability.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying value is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring.

The Company assessed that there is no substantial modification on the terms of the note payable.

Determining Operating Segments. The Company determings and presents operating segments
based on the information that is internally provided to the BOD. As at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Company has determined that it has ne operating segment other than being 2 holding company.

Assessment of Impgirment of Financiol Assets ot Amortized Cost. The Company determines the
atlowsnce for ECL based on the ‘probability-weighted astimate of the present value of all cath
shortfalls over the exoected fife of financial assets at amortized cost. ECL ars provided for credit
losses that result from possible default events within the next 12-months unless there has been 3
significant Increase in cradit risk since Initial recognition in which case ECL are provided ‘based on
lifetime ECL.

When determining if there has been a significant increase in credit risk, the Company considers
rezsonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort end that is
relevant for the perticular financis| instrument being zssessed such as, but not limited to, the
following factors:

* actuzl or expected external and internal cradit reting downgrade;
¢ existing or forecasted adverse changes In business, financial or sconomic canditions; and
* actual orexpected signi‘icant adverse changes In the operating results of the berrower,

The Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are considered to have low credit risk, and
therefore the loss zllowance is determined as 12 months ECL. The Company has assessed that the
ECL for other financial assets al amortized cost is not material because the transactions with respect
to ‘these financial assets were entered into by the Company only with reputshle banks and
counterparties with good credit standing and relatively low risk of defaults. Accordingly, no
impairment loss was recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016,
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The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets at amortized cost are 35 follows:

Note 2018 2017
Cash in banks 4 R253,845 605,059
Due from relsted partizs 13 16,455,561 5B 717,477

Assessment of Impairment of Investment in o Associgte, The Company zssesses the impairment of
investment in an associate whenever events or changas in clrcumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of investment in an associate may not be recoverable. Factors that the Company
considered In deciding when to perform impairment review Include the following, among others:

+ significant decline in business and operating performance in relation to expectations; and
= significant changes in the business operations and strategies of the Company and its assoclate,

Based on management assessment, there are no indicators for impairment that will warrant
impairment assessment. The ‘management and its lezal counse! believe that the order for the
cancellstion of MMDC's MPSA will not have s materia adverse effect or MMDC's uperations
[see Note 1). Accordingly, no imoairment loss was recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016. The carrying
amourt of investment in associates amounted to B2563 4 millicn ahd £2,640.2 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017 [see Note 7).

Assessing Impairment of Other Nonfinoncial Asscts, The Compzany assesses impairment on other
:ni_:.mnnm_ assets whenever events or thanges in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of
these assets may not be recoverable. The factors that the Company considers important which
could triggeran Impaitment review include the following:

¢ significant underperformance relative to expected historlcal or projected future operating
results;

= slgnificant changes in the manrer of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

s significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company recognizes an impainment loss whenever the <arrying velue of an ssset exceeds it
recoversble amount. The recoversble amount js computed using the value-in-use approach.
Recoverable amounts are eéstimated for individual assets or, if it is not possible, for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Datermining such amount reguires the estmation
of cash flows expected to be generated from the tontlnuec use and ultimate disposition of such
ansets,

No impairment loss was recognized in 2018, 2017 and 20186,

The carrying amount of the Company’s other nonfinancial 2ssets are as follows:

Note 2018 27
Cther current assets 5 B3,310,757 ¥B, 803,846
Property and eguipment & 43,138,202 45,093,324

Deferred input VAT - nat of current portion - 474,999
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Estimuting the Usefud Live: of Property end:Equipment. The Company estimates the useful lives of
property and equipment based on the period over which the assets zre expected to be availahle for
use. The Company annually reviews the estimated useful livas of property and equipment based on
factors that include asset E___.umznﬁ, internal technical evaluation, techrological changes,
environmental changes and anticipated use of the assets,

There is no change in the estimated useful Yife of the Campany’s property and equipment in 2018,

2017 and 2016, Carrying valie of property and equipment amounted to B43.1million and
®45.1 million as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively {see Note &),

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tux Assets. The Company reviews its.deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying vzlle to the extent that it is no longer probzble that
sufficient taxable profit wili be available to allow all or part of the deferred tex assets to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets were not recognized on NOLCO =nd excess of MCIT over ROT as at
December 31, 2048 and 2017 because the management believes that there will e no sufficiant
taxable profits against which deferred tax assets can be utilized.,

The Company's unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to #5.6 million and #7.8 million as ot
Dacember 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively {see Note 12).

Cash

This account conslsts of;

2018 2017

Cash on-hand R5,000 E5,000
Cash in banks 253 845 805,059
E2Z5E,845 #010,059

Cash in banks earn Interest at prevailing bank deposh rates. Interest income earned. smounted to
#1,088,#147,573 and B240,430in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Other Current Assets

This account consists of:

B 2018 2017
input VAT P8,141 414 £7,113,281
owWT £00 685 800,685
Current portion of deferred input VAT 474,999 814,744
Prepayments 74522 -
Others 15,136 265,136

F9,310,757 #2,803,846




6. Proparty snd Equipment

Balznces and mevements In this account.are as follows:

1018
Condaminium Bifice Furniture

Mote Unit and Fixtures - Service Vehicle Toral
Cost .
Balance at beginning of year B47,78E 565 21,735,619 F1,568,550 ®51,087 B3R
Additions - 60,300 - 50,300
Disposals - - 1,568,650} [2.568,650)
Balance 2t end of year A7, 78E,560 1,795,519 - 09,584 283
‘Accumulated Depredation .
Balance 8t baginning of vear £193.012 324,500 14a8f503 5,598,514
Depraclation 11 1,578,141 345,134 B7,147 2,015,422
Disposals - - {1,568,550 {L588.650]
Balznce a1 end of year 5,772,153 679,133 - 6,446,286
Carrying Amount B42,016,415 P1,121 786 B 33,138,202

017
Oifice
Condominium Furniture Construrtion

MNote CUnit endFlaores Sarvice Yehicle in Progress Total
Cost
Ealanco at baginning of year E34,475,635 F209,212 PL5EE650  RID236,737  R47.020234
Additiens - 1,526,407 - 2,545,187 407280
Reclassification 12,817,934 - - {iz2812,934) =
Balarce at end of year 47,788,554 1,735,619 1,568,650 - 51,092,838
Accumulated Depreclation
Balance at beginning of year 2, 726505 23,257 958,619 - 3,708,471
Deprediation 11 1,866,417 201,742 577,884 - 2,201 043
Balance at end of yaar 4,183 012 234,800 1481503 - £,953514
Carrying Amount FA3505 857 §1,410,620 BRY,147 F—  B45,001324

In 2017, the construction in progress was completed and reciassified to cendominivm unit,

Cn April 20, 2018, a fully-depreciated service vehlzle was sold; subssguently,

disposal of the asset was recognized,

no gain of loss on the

7. Investment in an Assocdiate

Mevements in this account

are as follows:

D18

207

Acquisition cost

RZ,604,000,000  R2,604,000,000

Accumulated share in equity:

Balance at beginning of year 26,244,182 15,299,972
Share in:
Met income {loss) (72,372,617} 15574 432
DOther comprehensive income 572,841 4,365,778
Balance at end of year {40,555,504) 36,244,187

Carrylng amount

F2,563,444,406 F2,640,244,182
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The Cempany has 600,000,000 shares of MARC representing 15.90% and Nn_bn_ﬁ. equity inferest as
at December 31, 2018 snd 2017, respectively {see Note 1). MARC's principal place of business is at

Unit £, One Luna Place, F. luna 5t., Buzuan City, Agusan del Noris,

Summarized financlal Information of MARC follows:

. ) 2018 2917
Total current assets $551,145,763  BH45,861,140
Total noncurrent asseks 5,278,237,211  4,670,252,221
Total current liabilities 1,140,620,272 444,607,449
Total noncurrent liabilities 798,616,529 £63,580,755
Revenue 987,255,064  2,040,859,226
Net income {loss) {388,807,118) 47,281,213
‘Other comprehensive income 2,878,556 13,265,870

8. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

This account consists of:

2018 2017
Accrued expenses B455,220 P227,303
Statutory payables 2 685 4,264
R457,9056 231,567

Accrued expanses perta nto accrua’ of cutside services, professional fees, and electricity,

others, which are expected to he settled in the next reporting period.

Statutory payables pertain to withholding taxes that are to be remitted to the Eaverament within

the next reporting period.

8. MNote Payable

Mevements in this atcount are as follows:

Note

2018

2017

Balance at beglnning of year
Assignment of receivables 13
Payment during the vear

(38,498,277}

—

£1,710,000,000 ®1,850,000,000

{50,000,000)
{50,000,000)

Batance at end of year

R1,671,501,723 E1,710,000,000

The noninterest-bearing note was assigned by PBB to Trans B
{TMEE). This llability represents the unpaid portion of the purchase price of the investment in an
associaie, The note's original maturity date was December 31, 2015 but was

extension is untll December 31, 2019,

iddle East Philippines Equities, Inc,

among

extended. Latest



10. Equity

On March 21, 1395, the S£C approved the listing of the Company’s 118,000,000 shares at an offer
price of #1.00 per share. As at Decernber 31,2018 and 2017, 1,528,474,000 shares are listed in the

FSE.

11, General and Administrative Expenses

This eccount consists of;

Note 2018 2017 2016
Dutside services R2,029,603 B1,155,011 R472.876
Depreciation B 2,015,422 2,291,043 1,661,267
Membership dues and other feas 1,285,456 1,402,640 1,402,315
Profassioral fees 649,129 584,089 550,979
Taxes and licenses 295,017 248,609 73,159
-Communication, light and water 290,668 206,616 161,100
Director's fees 116,000 155,000 124,412
Others 500,185 837,114 203,709
A B7,265,480 #6,880,122 P3,645,767

12. Proviston for Ihcome Tax

There Is no provision for income tax in 2018, 2017 and 2016 due 1o the Compary’s taxable loss

position,

The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory incoma tzx 1o the provision for Income

tax shown in the staterments of comprehensive income follows:

2018 2017 2015
Provision for income tax computed at
statutory tax rate (R25,391,100) E2,652,685 {R=14,690)
Change in unrecognized deferred tax
assets {2,208,253) 1,082,488 1,384,930
Add {deduct) tax effects of .
Share in metincome {loss) of an
gssotiate, not subject to tax 23,211,785 {4.672,330] {508,111}
Expired NOLCO and excess pf
MCIT aver RCIT 4,366,407 951,248 -
Nondeductible expenses 22,500 300 -
Interest income already subjected
to final tax {328} {44,392) 72,129/
B E- B~
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Details of unrecognized deferred tax assets are as follows:

2013 2017

NOLCOD R5,615,811 B7.B08,003
Ewress of MCIT over RCIT - 15,981
F5,615.811 B7.525,074

Deferred tax assets on NOLCO and excess of MCIT over RCIT were not recognized as at
Decemnber 31, 2012 and 2017 because the management belleves that there may be no sufficient
futwre taxable profits against which deferred tax assets ean be utilizad.

As at December 81, 2018, unused NOLCO that can be clzsimed as deduction fram future taxable

income are as follows:

Balance at

Beginning of Balance at
Year Yezr ricurred Expired End of Year  Year of Expiry
2018 P F7,120,480 e #7,190,480 2021
2017 6.879,122 - - 6,879,127 2020
2016 4,645 Fa7 - - 4,649 767 2019
20115 14,501,420 - 14501420 - 2018

¥256,030,309 #7,190,430 §18,501,420 #18,719,369

MCITincurred In 2015 amounting to 15,981 expired In 2018.

13. Related Party Transactions

The Lompany has the following tranisactions with fts Parent Company and other related patties:

Hature of Amoumn of Trassactions it anding Balansoes
Transzgtions 2018 2017 Z01E 2027
Due from Befated Partin: A .Il
Porent Company -
Rhi Advarizes lar working )
capits - Rz 031458 #it 000,000 PIESE3,277
Under common Somtra!:
) Ahvsnces for working
T capital 3455581 - BAS5, 501 5 030,000
Ctihars Aohvances for working
caplial - 37 - Ao
Qificers Avances = - - 7,180,200
R1E,455,581 RER LY ATT
Due 108 Kolated Party
Affifiate -
Frime Medis Haidings, Inc Advances for working -
capial R1O000.000 - #1.000,030 -

Due from related parties are nohinterest-bearing; collectible on demand,

settled in cash. Due to 2 related party

be settled in cash.

net impaired and to be
s noninterest-bearing, unsecured, payzble ondemand and to

The Company assigned the recelvable from the Parent Company to TMEE to cffset with the note
payable amounting to #38.5 million and #50.0 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively [sec Note 8).



Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Compensation of key management personnél on short term employee benefits amounted to
£0.05 million, RO.1 million, R0.035 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respactively.

14. Basic and Diluted Earnings {Loss} Per Share
Basic and diluted loss per share &s computed as follow:
2018 2017 2016
Net income {loss) {PB4,636,999) EB,542,283 (B2,715,634)
Weighted average number of
___common shares outstanding 1,528,474,000 1,52R,474,000  1,528,474,000
Earnings {loss) per share - basic and
E__.:“mu ) - {RD.055) FO.006 {PO.002}
There has been no transaction involving common shares or potential common shares that occurred
subseguent to the reporting dates.
15. Contingencies
Legal Clalms and Assignment of Litigation Cases
The Company Is 8 co-defendant In a collection case F_.._..,_.u._w“_..m milion filed in the Los Angeles
Superior Court by & foreign merchant and its Philippine affiliste in 2012. The plaintifis have alleged
that they were not paid the charge carde availmerts that the Company processed under a Tripartite
Merchants Agreements (TMA]. Based on Company’s records, however, payments due tc the foreign
merchant were wired to the lIatter's designated agent. The Company did not breach any regulatory
or trads standards in complying with the TMA. The Company’s management and its counsel believe
that the cellection case Is legally defensible, and any ultimate liability resulting therefrom will not
materially affect the Company's financial position and results of operations. Moreover, under the
Share Purchase Agreement dated October 18, 2013, RCBC wil indemnify the Company should the
court adjudge the Company lisble.
16. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company has risk management policies that systematically view the risks that could prevent the
Company from achieving its objectives, These policies are intended o manage risks identified In
such a way that opportunities to deliver the Company’s objectives are achieved. The Company's risk
management takes place in the context of day-to-day operations and normal business processas
such s strategic planning and business planning. Management has identified sach risk and is
responsiale for coordinating and continuously impraving risk stretegies, processes end measures in
accordance with the Company's established business abjectives,
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Financial Risk Management Dbjectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments consist of cash In banks, due from related parties,
accrued expenses, due to a related party and note payable. The primary purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance the Company’s operations. The main risks arising from the use of these
financial instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. ‘Management reviews and approves the
policies for managing each of these risks which are summarized balow.

‘Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding firancial instruments should a
counterparty defaults on its obligetion. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from
cash in banks and duc from related partics.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk on the financial assets a5 at amortized cost [5 the
carrying amount of thase assets as 8t the reporting date.

Financinl Assets at Amortized Cost

The Company limits its credit risk from balances with banks by depositing its cash with highly
reputable and pre-approved financial institutions. For due from related parties, credit risk is low
since the Company only transacts with related parties with strong capacity to mee: its contractusl
cash flow obligations in the near term

As discussed in Note 3 to the financia| statements, the Company considers credit risk In measuring
ECL of financial assets at amortized cost. Since the financial ‘assets at amortized cost of the
Company are considerad to have low credit risk, impalrment loss is limited to 12-month ECL.

The table below presents an analysis of the credit quality of the Company's financial assets at
amortized cost,

2018 2017

Cash in banks B253,845 #E05,050
Due from related parties 16,455,581 58,717,477
216,709,426 §59,322 536

Liquidity risk is the risk thet the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintzin flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to meet
zll foreseeabde cash needs.

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Company’s financial ilabilities at amcrtized
cost as 3t December 31, 2018 and 2017 bzsed on contraciual undiscounted cash flows,

2018
Lessthan One  Dne Month to More than
Maonth £ne Year One Year Tatal
Arccrued expenses Ras5.220 L B Fa55, 220
Due to 3 related party 1,000,000 1,000,000
MNote payable - 1,671,501,723 - 1,671,501,723

PA55,220  #1,672,501,723 P~ P1,672,956,942




017
Lessthan One  One Monthto More than
Month ~ Dne Yeor . One Year Total
Accruzd expenses B227,303 B £-  F227.303
Note payabie = 1,710.000,000 = £1,710,000,000
B227303  ®1,710,000,000 F-  $1,710,227.303

Eair Value of Financlal Assets and Financial Liabilitles
Set out below s a comparison by category of carrying velues and fair values of the Company's
financial instruments that are carried In the financial statements:

2018 2017
Carrying Valus Fair Value Lamying Yalue falr Value
‘Financial Assets at _?.:E.:wmn Cost

‘Cash ®I58B45 F25B,845 B510,059 B510,055
Due from related parties 16,455,581 16,455,581 58717477 58,717,477
RI1E,714,426 F16,714,226 £59.377,536 ®58,327,536

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost
Accried expenses B455,220 B455,220 R223,303 E227,303
Due to arelated party 1,800,000 1,000,000 - -
Note payable 1871,501,725 1671501723 1,710,000,000  1710,000.000

B1.67255654 P1,671,056943 ®1,710,227.303 Bl 710,227,308

Fingnciol Assets ond Financle! Liagilitizs. The camying amounts of cash, due from related parties,
accrued expenses, due to g related party and note payeble approximate their fair values due to the
shor-term nature of the transactions. The fair value measurement of current finarclal assets and
lizbilities is classified as Level 3 {significant uncbservable inputs).

17

Capltal Management Objectives, Polidies and Procedures

The Company's capita| management objectives are to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as 2
going concern and to provide an adequate return to shiareholdars. The Company manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capltal structure, the Company may return capital o shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company considers its total equity amounting to #959.6 million and B1,043.7 million as at
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, as its capital,

There has bezn no change inthe objectives, policies and processes in 2018 and 2017.
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FIRM PRINCIPLES, WiSE SOUTITHING

. - REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, lanc.
16th Floor Citlhank Towsr

8741 Faseo de Roxas, Makat City

We have audited the accompanying flnancial statements of Bright Kindla Resources & Itwestments, Inc,
{the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., a5 at December 31, 2018 and 2017
and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 on which we have rendered our report
dated April 12, 2018, .

In compliance with Securities Regulations Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has 615 stockholders owning ene hundred (100) or more shares sach,

REYES TACANDONG & Co,

Coneleadr Y. Lo

CARDLINA P, ANGELES

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 865321

Tax Identificatien Mo, J05-067-976-000

BOA Accreditation No. 4782; Valid until August 15, 2021

SEC Accracitation No. D658-AR-3 Group A
valid until May 17, 2020

BIR Accraditation No. D8-00S144-007-2017
Yalid until-January 13, 2020

FTR ho. 7334336
Isskie G January 3, 2018, Makst] City

April 12,2019
Makati City, Metro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
DN SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Bright Kindle Resources & Investments, irc.
i6th Floor Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

We have audited In accordznce with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Bright
Kindle Resources & Investments, Inc, {the Company), 2 subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., a3 &
December 21, 2018 and 2017 and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, and have issued
our report thereon dated April 12, 2019, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming 2n opinian on
the financial statements taken as 3 whole. The accompanying Susplementary Schedules for submission to
the Securities and Exchange Commission are the respansibility of the Compary's management., These
supplementary schedules include the following: .

= Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations

*  Financial Ratios

*  Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
*  Schedules required by Part 1! of SRC Rule 68, as Amended

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securitiss Regulation Code Rule 68 Partll, as
amended, and are not part of the basic financlal statements. This information has been subject=d to the
auditing procedures applied in the audn of the basic financial stataments, including tomparing such
informztion directly 1o the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic firancial
staternents or to the basic financial statements themselves. In our opinion, the information i fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

CAROLINA P, ANGELES

Fartner

CPA Centificate No. 85981

Tax identification No, 205-067-876-000

BOA Accreditation No, 4782; Valid until August 15, 2021

SECAccreditstion Ne. O658-AR-3 Group A
Nalld until May 17, 2020

BIR Accreditation No, 0B-005144-007-2017
Valid uptil January 13, 2020

PTR Mo, 7334335
Issued lanuary 3, 2019, Makati City

April 12,2019
Makat! City, Metro Manila
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BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES B INVESTMENTS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Title

Adopted | MOt

Mot

Adopted | Applicable

| Framewori for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements

Conceptual Framewark Phase A: Objectives and gualitative characteristics

PFRSs Practice Statement Emamwmami Commentary

PFRSs Practice Statement 2: Making Materiality Judgments

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)

PERS

Title

Adopteg |  Not

Not

Adoptad | Applicable

FFRS 1 [Revised)

First-time Adcption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standerds

s

Amendments to PFRS 1 Additional Exemotions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosurec for First-time
Adopters

Amendrments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinfiation and
Removal of Fixed Date for First-time Adapters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Government loans

Amendments to PFRS 1; First-time Adoption of
Philippine Finarclal Reporting Standards - Deletian of
Short-tarm Exemptions for First-time Atopters

FFR5 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2; Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cashsetilsd
Share-based Payment Transactions

Amentdments to PFRS 2: Classification and
Measurement of Share-bzsed Payment Transactions

PFRE 3 [Rovised)

Business Combinatlons




Mot Mot

PERS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable

Amendment to PFRS 3: Accounting for Contingent v
Consideration in 3 Business Combination

Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions for Jaint .
Yentures

PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v

Arnendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantes Contracts v

Amentments to PFRS 4: Applying PFRS 9, Financla! v
Instrurments with PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts

Nan-gurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued s

PSS Dperaticne

Amendment to PERS 5: Changes in Methods of Dispozal o

PFRS & Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources ¥

PERS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v

Amendments to PERS 7; Reclassification of Financial v
Assets

Amendments to PERS 7: Reclassification of financial |,
| Assets- Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

hﬂmiuawuﬁ te PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of b
Financizl Acgsets

| Amendments to PERS 7: Disclosires - Offsetting .
Financial Assets and Financial Liahilities

Amendment to PFRS 7: Serviting Contracts v

Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 lo Condensed Interim Financial v
Statements

PFRS 8 Operating Segments v

Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregstion of Operating
Segmenis

Amendments to PFRS 8: Reconclliation of the Total of v
the Reportable Segmants’ Asscts to the Entlty’s Assets

PFRS 10 Consolidated Financlal Statements ¥

Amendments to PERS 10: Transition Guidarce v

Amendments to PFRS 10; Investment Entities ¥




PrRS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

Amendments 10 PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidatlon Exception

v

PFRS 11

lolnt Arrangements

Amendmentsto PFRS 11: Transition Guidance

Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acguisitians
of Interests In Joint Operations

PFR5 12

Disclosire of interasts in Dther Entities

Amendments 1o PFRS 12; Transition Guidance

Amendments to PERS 12, Investment Entities

Amendments to FFRS 12: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of
the Standard

PFRS 13

Fair value WMeasurement

Amendment to PFRS 13: Short-term receivebles and
Pzyables

Amendment 10 PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception

PFRS 14

Pegulatory Deferral Aczounts

FFR5 15

revenue from Contracts with Customers

Amendmants to PFRS 15: Clarificstions to PERS 15

Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS)

RPAS

Title

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

PAS 1{Revized)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financla! Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liguldation

Amendments to PAS 1: Presenitation of Items of Other
Comprehenzive Income

Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the
Requirements tor Comparative Presentation

Amendments te PAS 1: Disclosure |nitiative

PAS 2

inventories

PAS 7

tatement of Cazh Flows




Mot Not
Titl _ 3
PAR e Rdogtier Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure Initiative +
Siin _pn_.uc: nting Palicles, Changes in Accounting Estimates -
and Errors
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period 4
FAS 11 Construction Contracts ¥
PAS 12 Incame Taxes v
Amendments 10 PAS 12: Recovery of Underlying Assets v
Amendments to PAS 12; Recognition of Deferred Tax v
Azzets for Unreslized Losses
PAS 1B Property, Plant and .mn_:mﬁm._m:ﬁ '
Amendrment to PAS 16; Classification of Servicing 7
Eguipment
Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated ol
Deprediation
Amendment to PAS 16! Property, Plant and Egquipment
- Claritication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation ¥
and Amortization
Amendment to PAS 16; Agriculture: Bearer Plants v
PAS 17 Leases ¥
PAS 1B Revenus ¥
PAS 15 .
: o v
(Revised) Employee Benefits
Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v
Employee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Marker v
lssue
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
PAS 20 : 7
Government Asslstance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates o
Amendment: Net Investment in 2 Foreizgn Operation v
PAS 23 {Revised) | Borrowing Costs v
PAS 24 (Revised) | Relstad Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24: Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benafit 2lans ¥




PAS

Title

Adopied

Adopted

Applicable

Mot

FAS 27
{Amended)

Seadrate Financial Statements

¥

Amendments to PAS 27; Investrmeant Entities

Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Se parate
ﬂ_:m:n_w_ Statements

PAS 28
{amended)

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to PAS 28: investment Entities: Applying
the Conselidation mxnmﬂgn_._

Amendments to whmnmm_. hMeasuring an Associate or
Joint Yenture at Fair Value

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinfiétionary Economies

PAS 32

Financlal Instrumeants: Disclosure and Presentation

Financial Instruments: Presentation

Amendments 1o PAS 32: Futtable Financial Instruments
anc Obligetions Arising on Liguidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights Issues

Amendrments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Asssts and
Finandal Liahilities

Amendments to PAS 32; Tax Effect of Distribution to

Holders of Equity Instruments

BAS 33

Earnings per Share

PAS 34

tnterim Financial Reporting

Amendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
m_wﬂ.:mn._r information for Totz! Assets and Liabilities

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

B4S 36

Impairment of Assets

Eqﬁnuzﬁ:ﬂ to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent Assets

PAS 3%

Intangible Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Method -
Froportionate Restatement of Accumulatad
Amartization




Title

| Not
Adopted

Mot
Applicable

Amendment to PAS 38: Clariflcation of Accaptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amertization

1._.

FAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recogrition and Measiirement

Armendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Rzcognition of .E;E.__nu_ Aszets and Flnancial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 35: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 35: The Fair valye QOptian

Amendments to PAS 38: Financial Guarantes Contracts

}Emnnam:ﬁ.ﬁ. PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Aszats

Amendments to PAS 39 Reclassification of Financizl
Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derlvatives

Amendment to PAS39: Eligible Hedzed items

Amendments to PAS 39: Novation of Derfvatives and
Lontinuation of Hedge Accounting

PAS 40

| Investment Property

Amendment to PAS 40; Claritying the Interrelatio nship
between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property
| &8 Investment Property or Owner-occupied Froperty

| Amendments to PAS 40: Transfers of Investment

Froperty

PAS 41

Agriculturs

-

Amendment tc PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Philippine Interpretations

Interpretations

Titla

Adopted Adopted

ot
Applicable

IFRIC 1

Changes In Existing Decommissioning, festoration and
Simllar Liabilities

¥

IFRIC 2

Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar
Instruments

IFRIC 4

Determining Whether an Arrangement Containsa
Lease




—— -
Interpretatlons Title Adppted A h“”m d mﬁh_._” wzm
ik Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning, e
Restoration and Envirenmental Rehabilitation Funds
(FRICE Liabilities arising from Participating in 2 Specific Market »
{~Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipmient
o Applylng the Restztement Approach under PAS 29 .
: A Financial Re ncn___...,m.. i Hyperinflationary Econamies
IFRICS Reassessmerit of Embedded wmnz_mw._,._mm ¥
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC=5: -
. Embedded Derivativac
. IFRIC 1D Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment v
{FRIC1Z Service Concession Arrangements v
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty uEEm}amm ¥
IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, ; 5
Minimum Funiding Reguirements and their Intersction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, y
Prapaymeants of a Minimum Funding Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation v
AFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners ¥
IFRIC 18 Transfars of Assets from Customers o
IERIC 12 mﬁwsmiw:_ﬁ.m_:m:n_m_ Liabilities with Equity 7
Instruments
: Fors :
{ERIC 20 mﬁm?sm Costs in the Production Phase of a Surace -
line
WRIC 21 levies V
IERIC 22 .mﬂ.m__m_._ _n.,c._.:.m..._E Tranzacticns and Advance 7
Consideration
Philippine Interpretations - SIC
; . : Not Mot
interpretations Title A
Eode apred Adopted | Applicable
StC-7 | Introduction of the Euro v
Government Assistance - No Speclfic Relation to
SIC-30 e L v
Operating Activitiss
SIC-15 Operating Lesses — Incentives v




Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted
P dopted | o dontad | Acoliabie
Sicas income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity .
or its Shareholoers
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
sIC-27 v
Legal Form of & Lease
SiC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures, L
sica1 mmﬂm,.ﬂmm - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising v
Services
Slc-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs ~




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS

DECEMBER 51, 2018

Below is 8 schedule showing financial soundness Indicators in 2018 and 2017.

2018 2017

Current/Liguidity Ratio
Current assets
Current liabilities

0.02 0.04
R26,0251B3  P68,131,38)
1,672,959,629  1,710,231,567

Solvency Ratio
tncome (loss) before income tax, deprediation, and
amortization
Total liabilities

{0.05) 0.01

[R82,621,577)  ®11,133326
1,672,959,629  1,710,231,567

Debt-to-equity Ratio
Total labilities
Total equity

1.74 1.64
P1,672,955,629 P1,710,231557
959,648,162  1,043,712,320

Aszet-to-equity Ratio
Totalassets
Total equity

2.74 2.64
P2,632,607,791 82,753,943 887
859,648,162  1,043,712,320 ;

Interest rate coverage Ratio
Pretax income {loss) before interest
Interest expense

{R24,636,999) BE,B42 283

Profitability Ratip
Nat income {loss)
Total equity

~ [oo88) 0.01
(RB4,636,999) R5,842,283
959,648,162  1,043,712320




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF

RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings as shown in the financial
statements at beginning of year
Cumulative share i net income of an associzte

196,278,091
{29,470,653)

Unappropriated retained ea rrnings-available for dividend

declaration, beginning 156,807 438
Net loss during the year {RB4,636,599)
Share In net loss of an assoclate 77.372,617 {7,264,382)
Total retained earnings availzble for dividend declaration at end of vear #2159 543 056
Reconciliation:
Amount
Unappropriated retalned earnings as shown in the financial statements at end of year  R111,641,092
Cumuilative share in netloss of an associzte 47,901,964

Total retainec earnings available for dividend declaration at-end of year

150 543 056




BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES & INVESTMENTS, INC.
. {A subsidiary of RYM Business Management Carp.}
SFC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR. 6 PART ||

OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2018
Tahle of Contents
Schedule _ Descrigtion Poge
A Financial Assets N/A

Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Emplovees, Related

B Parties, and Principal Stockholders {Other than Related Partias) |.|Hg.l|
@ Amounts wﬁm.w{mwvm :._ua w_miﬂmu Parties which are Eliminated during N/A
the Consclidation of Finandal Statements

3] intanglble Assets - Other Assets Nfa

E Leng-Term Debt Lﬁﬁ; =
F Indebtedness to Related Parties __ WA

G Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers _ WA
H Capitzl Stock 2

Conglomerate Map 3
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Schedule 8. Amounts Recsivable from Directors, Officars, Employees, Related Parties. and Principal Stockholeers (Other than Related Parties)

Balance at el Balance at
Name and designation of . e Amounts Amaunts Ariounts ; i S
debtor el colected  reclassifiad* assigned* Current Nencurrent end of
: year e o __year
Parent Company o
RYM PAF,553,277 {R55,000) - (P38,498277)  £8,000,000 2~ ¥8,000.000
Officers 7,180,200 {360,200)  {5,800,000) - - = -
Under commen controf
Marcventures Mining ard
Development _
Corporation (MMDC) 5,000,000  (3,344,419) 6,800,000 - 8,455 581 - 8,455,581
Others ~ 4,000 (4,000} - - - - -
' - BS8,717,477 ' B ___ P16455,581

*In 2018, the Company assigned the receivables from the Parent Company to TMEE fo offset with the note payable amounting to B38.5 million and
receivables from officers were absorbed by MMDC,




Schedule H. Capital Stock

Mumber of sharag : : o
7 -~ Numberof shares
issued and reseived for
Title of issus Number'of shiates UGt options, warrants, 0 OF shares held FREE G s Others
authorized shown under ! Pl by related partiog and employees
PR conversion and
related balance skt Fiikts
sheet eaption B
Comman Stock 2,000,000,000 1,528,474,000 - 1,170,159,929 95,088,000 263,226,011
. —— — EEES




Schedufe I, Conglomerate Map

PCD NOMINEE
CORPORATION

PCD NOMINEE
CORPORATION

(FILIPINO) {NON-FILIPINO)

RYM BUSINESS

MANAGEMENT . S
CORFORATION

. 76.56%

- BRIGHT KINDLE RESOURCES &
INVESTMENTS, INC.

il Lo R e e et T il T

3 - T A R gt B i T g g i
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BRIGHTGREEN RESOURCES | MARCVENTURES MINING §  ALUMINA MINING

AND DEVELOPMENT
| CORPORATION PHILIPPINES, INC.
; I CORPORATION

BAUXITE RESOURCES, INC. |



